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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FIVE YEARS GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY
(RM’000)

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

20,711

36,584

46,015

91,655

40,309

Profit before tax

4,053

11,958

9,053

9,985

5,600

Profit attributable to equity holders

4,081

8,035

6,095

8,985

4,581

26,770

65,262

70,597

89,505

126,549

3,336

9,729

8,477

18,131

9,190

Financial Results
Revenue

Key Balance Sheet Data
Total Assets
Total Liabilities
Net assets attributable to equity holders
No. of shares in issue at year end

23,434

55,533

60,156

69,140

114,999

155,001,000

203,451,000

425,176,500

425,176,500

850,353,000

Shares Information
Basic earnings per share (sen)

3.35

4.66

1.91

1.61 (*)

0.64

Net assets per share attributable to equity holders (RM)

0.15

0.27

0.14

0.16

0.14

* Adjusted for the Rights Issue completed in 2014.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (cont’d)
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EA Holdings Berhad (878041-A)

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of EA Holdings Berhad, I am pleased to present the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements of the
Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2014.
Financial Performance
2014 was a sobering year for EAH after the exceptional results that we achieved in 2013. For 2014, EAH recorded revenue of RM40.3 million, which was a
substantial drop from revenue of RM91.7 million achieved in 2013. Whilst EAH had won and was awarded other projects in 2014, none of the new projects were
similar in terms of size with the major projects won in 2013, hence the drop in revenue.
Profit before tax for 2014 was RM5.59 million, down from RM9.98 million recorded in 2013. Notwithstanding that, the profit margin after tax for EAH increased
from 10.1% recorded in 2013 to 11.7% in 2014, due to lower proportion of external cost required for the projects undertaken during the year.
The Group’s ICT Services segment contributed the highest revenue for 2014, accounting for 49.7% of the Group’s total revenue, whilst the Software Solutions
segment provided 33.4% and the balance of Group’s revenue was derived from the RFID and Building Automation segment (16.9%).

Corporate Developments
On the corporate front, 2014 had been a very busy year for EAH.
In February 2014, the Group completed a bonus issue warrants to reward its shareholders, whereby 94,483,666 Warrants B were issued on 25 February 2014
on the basis of two (2) free Warrants B for every nine (9) existing ordinary shares of RM0.10 each.
In June 2014, EAH successfully completed its very first Rights Issue, which was oversubscribed by 41.6%. The Group managed to raise RM42.52 million from
this Right Issue, of which the major part of the proceeds would be used to fund our war chest for our M&A strategy, with the balance of the funds going to pay
of our bank borrowings and for working capital.
In November 2014, EAH completed the acquisition of Murasaki Technology Sdn Bhd (“MTSB”). MTSB is engaged in the provision E-business software application,
software integration and related services. MTSB offers a range of products and services, mainly its self-developed range of e-Solutions which are customizable
for various business enterprise functions such as customers relation management (CRM), finance, procurement, human resource management, inventories
management and store management. This timely acquisition was undertaken to broaden EAH’s range of products and services, to increase our top and bottom
lines and in addition, the expanded range of products and services will help to mitigate any potential slowdown in demand.
For 2015, we are pushing our M&A to higher gear as we look to diversify our business, to look beyond the ICT industry, which can prove be fickle and challenging
as seen in 2014.
Pursuant to this, on 18 March 2015, EAH had announced the proposed acquisition of 20% equity interest in Cekap Air Sdn Bhd (“Cekap”) for RM47.04 million.
Cekap Cekap is principally involved in the provision of hydraulic M&E engineering for water supply and treatment while its wholly-owned subsidiary company,
WY Consultancy & Development Services Sdn Bhd (“WY Consultancy”) is principally involved in project management consultancy and its related activities. The
vendors of Cekap have given a guarantee that the Profit After Tax of Cekap for 2015 and 2016 shall be at least RM56.0 million, which translates to an average
Profit After Tax of RM28.0 million per annum. Once completed, this proposed acquisition would enable EAH to reduce its dependency on ICT market while at
the same time, give us an extra footing to tap into the robustly growing water and construction industry.
In conjunction with the above proposed acquisition but not inter-conditional, EAH had also proposed a bonus issue of up to 267,356,264 new ordinary shares
of RM0.10 each on the basis of one (1) bonus share for every five (5) existing shares held on an entitlement date to be determined later.
Both the proposed acquisition and proposed bonus issue exercises are pending the relevant approvals from the relevant authorities.

Industry Outlook And Group Prospect
Spending on information technology (IT) hit about US$9 billion in 2014, comprising US$5.5 billion on hardware, US$1 billion on software and US$2.5 billion on
services. IT spend is expected to register a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 9.5% from 2013-2017. “That’s a very healthy growth rate, by the way,”
Milroy told a group of journalists and industry players at Frost & Sullivan’s ICT Outlook for Malaysia briefing in Kuala Lumpur on Nov 13. IT spending across
hardware, software and services is expected to grow rapidly at 10%, 8% and 9.1% respectively. “Malaysia is also the only country in Asia Pacific where the
proportion of hardware spending still outstrips spending on software and services, but we expect that to change as organisations consolidate their hardware,”
he said. One of the major drivers has been the Malaysian Government and its various initiatives to encourage the adoption of ICT, including the Digital Malaysia
programme that seeks to transform the nation into a fully developed ‘digital economy’ by 2020.
(Source: Digital News Asia – 14 November 2014)
Barring any unforeseen circumstances, the Board is optimistic of achieving a satisfactory performance for the next financial year ending 31 December 2015.

Acknowledgement And Appreciation
On behalf of the Board, I wish to express our gratitude to our staff for their dedication, diligence, professionalism and commitment to the Group. I would also
like to take this opportunity to convey our appreciation to our clients, business associates, shareholders and various stakeholders for their continued support
and confidence in EAH.
Thank you.
Azahar bin Rasul
Chairman
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EA Holdings Berhad (878041-A)

COMPANY PROFILE
The Company was incorporated on 6 November 2009 under the name of EA Holdings Sdn Bhd and subsequently converted into a public limited company on
19 February 2010 and assumed its present name.

www.eah.com.my

100%

EASS SDN BHD (748335-K)

100%

100%
86%

(878041-A)

COLWYN BAY TECHNOLOGIES
SDN BHD (1025016-V)

100%

EA HOLDINGS BERHAD

CSS MSC SDN BHD (716106-M)

100%

Since the Group’s successful listing on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 20 July 2010, EA Holdings Group structure has expanded as
follows :-

EA MSC SDN BHD (812544-M)

MURASAKI TECHNOLOGY
SDN BHD (1061765-T)

DDSB (M) SDN BHD (487799-X)
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COMPANY PROFILE (cont’d)
Our Products

E-business
Software Applications

Banking Application

System &
Infrastructure Integrations

ICT Consultancy Services

GIS Solution Business

OUR PRODUCTS

Business Intelligence
& Data Warehousing

6

RFID System For
Manufacturing, Security
& Building Automation

Enterprise Resource
Planning & Human Capital
Management Solutions Technology

www.eah.com.my
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
Board Of Directors

Auditors

Azahar bin Rasul
Chairman, Independent and Non-Executive Director

STYL Associates (AF 1929),
Chartered Accountants
902, 9th Floor, Block A,
Damansara Intan,
No. 1, Jalan SS 20/27,
47400 Petaling Jaya, Selangor

Mohammad Sobri bin Saad
Chief Executive Officer / Executive Director
Basir bin Bachik
Executive Director
Choo Seng Choon
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim
Independent, Non-Executive Director

Audit And Risk Management Committee
Choo Seng Choon
(Chairman)
Azahar bin Rasul
Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

Company Secretary
Laang Jhe How (MIA 25193)

Stock Exchange Listing
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
(ACE Market)

Principal Banker
Hong Leong Bank Berhad
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Berhad

Registered Office

Choo Seng Choon
(Chairman)

149A, Jalan Aminuddin Baki
Taman Tun Dr Ismail
60000 Kuala Lumpur
Tel: 03-7729 1519
Fax: 03-7728 5948

Azahar bin Rasul

Registrar

Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

Insurban Corporate Services Sdn Bhd
149, Jalan Aminuddin Baki
Taman Tun Dr Ismail
60000 Kuala Lumpur
Tel: 03-7729 5529
Fax: 03-7728 5948

Nomination Committee

Remuneration Committee
Choo Seng Choon
(Chairman)
Azahar bin Rasul

Principal Place Of Business

Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

Unit 25-5, Menara Permata Damansara,
685, Jalan Damansara,
60000 Kuala Lumpur
Tel: 03-7733 9762
Fax: 03-7733 9765

www.eah.com.my
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
Board Of Directors
Name Of Members

Designation

Nationality

Azahar bin Rasul

Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysian

Mohammad Sobri bin Saad

Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director

Malaysian

Basir bin Bachik

Executive Director

Malaysian

Choo Seng Choon

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysian

Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysian

Azahar Bin Rasul
A Malaysian aged 53, Azahar was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of
EA Holdings Berhad on 22 February 2010. He is also a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He was appointed as the
Chairman of the Company on 15 April 2013.
He obtained his Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration from Central Michigan University in 1988 and a Master of Science Degree in Accounting
from the University of New Haven, Connecticut, USA in 1990. He has over 26 years of experience in the field of corporate accounting, finance, banking and
administration. His last employment was with Land & General Berhad as its Senior Manager for Administration and Finance until 1995, when he left to set up
his own business. Azahar also sits on the board of directors of Instacom Group Berhad.
Azahar attended all the Board meetings held during his tenure in office for the financial year ended 31 December 2014. He has no family relationship with any
director or substantial shareholder of the Company.
Azahar has no conflict of interest with the Group and has no conviction for offences within the past 10 years other than traffic offences.

Mohammad Sobri Bin Saad
A Malaysian aged 55, Mohammad Sobri is the Group founder and was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer/ Executive Director on 6 November 2009. He is
responsible for the operations, strategic planning and direction of our Group. He obtained his Bachelor of Science (Hons) Degree in Mathematics and Computing
from The Polytechnic of Wales, Pontypridd, Wales, United Kingdom in 1984.
He started his career in various local corporations as well as multinational companies such as Harrisons Malaysian Plantation Berhad, Bank Simpanan Nasional
and ESSO Malaysia Berhad who were users of ICT technologies like IBM, SAP and Oracle. He started a new phase of career to become a supplier of ICT
technology by working and consulting in Infotech Consultants Pte Ltd, Singapore, Platinum Technology Inc, an US-based software company, Teliti Computers
Sdn Bhd, Swift Applications Sdn Bhd and EASS. His experiences encompassed the usage of advance ICT technology supplied by IBM, Computer Network
Technology Corporation, LANdesk Software Inc, ReadSoft and his clients comprised of large corporations in the banking industries, oil and gas, and utilities
companies in Malaysia and the ASEAN region. He also sits on the Board of Directors of the subsidiary companies of the Group, namely EASS Sdn Bhd, EA MSC
Sdn Bhd and CSS MSC Sdn Bhd.
Mohammad Sobri attended all the Board meetings held during his tenure in office for the financial year ended 31 December 2014. He has no family relationship
with any director or substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mohammad Sobri has no conflict of interest with the Group and has no conviction for offences within the past 10 years other than traffic offences.
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EA Holdings Berhad (878041-A)

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE (cont’d)
Basir Bin Bachik
A Malaysian aged 57, Basir was appointed as the Executive Director of EA Holdings Berhad on 22 February 2010. He is also the Chief Operating Officer for ICT
Services of the Group. He obtained his Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer Science from Edinburgh University, United Kingdom in 1982.
Basir has over 30 years of experience in the IT industry, serving both local and multinational companies such as Malaysian Airline System Berhad, ESSO Malaysia
Berhad, IBM Singapore Pte Ltd, SHELL Refining Company (Federation of Malaya) Berhad, IBM Malaysia Sdn Bhd, Petronas Group of companies and iPerintis Sdn
Bhd. He has also consulted for various financial institutions in Malaysia including Bank Simpanan Nasional and Permodalan Nasional Berhad. He started as a
systems programmer, moving on to IT systems management to become a consultant specialising in ITIL. He has also managed large IT infrastructure projects
for a petrochemical complex and a government agency. He is an accomplished system architect specialising in IT infrastructure. He is also a Director of EASS
Sdn Bhd and DDSB (M) Sdn Bhd, subsidiary companies of the Group.
Basir attended all the Board meetings held during his tenure in office for the financial year ended 31 December 2014. He has no family relationship with any
director or substantial shareholder of the Company.
Basir has no conflict of interest with the Group and has no conviction for offences within the past 10 years other than traffic offences.

Choo Seng Choon
A Malaysian aged 41, Choo Seng Choon was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Director of EA Holdings Berhad on 22 February 2010. He was
subsequently appointed as the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee on 13 August 2010. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Choo Seng Choon is a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a Chartered Member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, a
Chartered Member of the Institute of Internal Auditors, Malaysia and a Certified Internal Auditor. He also holds a Diploma in Financial Accounting from Tunku
Abdul Rahman College, Kuala Lumpur.
He has over 18 years of professional experience that includes internal audits, risk management, investigations, business management consulting, business
process re-engineering, corporate governance advisory, due diligence, financial projections and financial audits.
Choo Seng Choon is currently the Non-Executive Director of Audex Governance Sdn Bhd, a professional services firm that specialises in the provision of
internal audit, risk management and management consulting services to a wide range of multinational and public listed conglomerate clients operating in the
Asia Pacific Region. In addition, he also sits on the board of directors of Instacom Group Berhad and also on the board of directors of several private limited
companies.
Choo Seng Choon attended all the Board meetings held during his tenure in office for the financial year ended 31 December 2014. He has no family relationship
with any director or substantial shareholder of the Company.
Choo Seng Choon has no conflict of interest with the Group and has no conviction for offences within the past 10 years other than traffic offences.

Abdul Fattah Bin Mohamed Yatim
A Malaysian aged 59, Abdul Fattah was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Director of EA Holdings Berhad on 22 February 2010. He was subsequently
appointed as a member of the Audit and Risk Managment Committee on 13 August 2010. He is also a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of the Company.
Abdul Fattah obtained his Bachelor of Science Degree in Electronic and Electrical Engineering from Loughborough University of Technology, United Kingdom
in 1978. He practised engineering with the National Electricity Board (now known as Tenaga Nasional Berhad) where he specialised in engineering software
development and simulation and long range transmission planning. From 1983, he served in professional and senior management positions in Esso Production
Malaysia Incorporated, including a two year foreign assignment in Exxon companies in USA and UK. He then worked in System Consultancy Services Sdn Bhd
from 1996 where he was a consultant to the Malaysian Armed Forces.
From 2003 to present, Abdul Fattah has been a consultant in several consulting companies providing ICT consulting services on various aspects of ICT such
as, amongst others, application delivery, policy, security, project management, and business continuity planning, to clients in the public and private sectors.
Presently he is a Principal Consultant in Teknimuda (M) Sdn Bhd.
Abdul Fattah attended all the Board meetings held during his tenure in office for the financial year ended 31 December 2014. He has no family relationship with
any director or substantial shareholder of the Company.
Abdul Fattah has no conflict of interest with the Group and has no conviction for offences within the past 10 years other than traffic offences.

www.eah.com.my
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board of Directors of EA Holdings Berhad is fully committed towards ensuring that the principles and best practices as set out in the Malaysian Code on
Corporate Governance 2012 (“the Code”) are applied and practiced by the Group. The Board is pleased to report to the shareholders on how the Group has
applied all the eight (8) principles of the Code and the extent to which it has complied with the recommendations of the Code.

Board Of Directors
Roles And Principal Responsibilities
The Board has overall responsibility for the corporate governance, proper conduct and strategic direction of the Group. The Board delegates authority and vests
accountability for the Group’s day to day operations with a management team led by the Group’s CEO, En. Mohammad Sobri bin Saad. The Board, however,
assume responsibility for the following areas :a)

Reviewing and adopting a strategic plan for the Group;

b)

Overseeing the conduct of the Group of the Group’s business to evaluate whether the business is being properly managed;

c)

Identifying principal risks and ensuring the implementation of appropriate systems to manage these risks

d)

Succession planning;

e)

Developing and implementing an investor relations programme and shareholder communications policy for the Group; and

f)

Reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of the Group’s internal controls systems and management information systems, including systems for complianc
with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines.

The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) are clear and distinct. The Chairman is responsible for the
effective conduct of Board discussions while the CEO is responsible for the running of the day to day operations of the Group.
Board Charter
In 2014, the Board had approved and adopted a Board Charter setting out the duties, responsibilities and functions of the Board in accordance with the
principles of good corporate governance as set out in the policy documents and guidelines issued by the regulatory authorities. The Board Charter is available
on EAH’s corporate website at www.eah.com.my.
Composition and Balance
The Group is led and managed by a well-balanced Board which consists of members with wide range of business, technical and financial background in
ensuring that the Group achieves the highest standard of performance, accountability and ethical behaviour as expected by the stakeholders.
The Board is made up of five (5) members, consisting of two (2) Executive Directors and three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board has a
balanced composition of Executive and Non-Executive Independent Directors such that no individual or group of individuals can dominate the Board’s decision
making powers and processes.
The profiles of the Directors are presented on page 7 to 8 of this annual report.
Mr Choo Seng Choon was appointed as the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, to whom the concerns by the public and external stakeholders can be
addressed.
Gender Diversity Policy
The Board shall endeavour to achieve at least one (1) female director by 2018. The Board, through the Nomination Committee would take steps to ensure
that due consideration is given to female candidates as directors and/or Board Committee members to facilitate achievement of such policy and target in
accordance with MCCG 2012.
Reinforced Independence
The Non-Executive Directors are not employees of the Group and do not participate in the day-to-day management of the Group. The Independent NonExecutive Directors are able to express their views without any constraint. This strengthens the Board which benefits from the independent views expressed
before any decisions are taken. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the performance of the independent Directors and is satisfied they have able to
discharge their responsibilities in an independent manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (cont’d)
None of the current independent Board members had served the Company for more than nine years as per the recommendation of the Code. Should the tenure
of an independent Director exceed nine years, shareholders’ approval will be sought at a General Meeting or if the services of the Director concerned are still
required, the director concerned will be re-designated as a non-independent Director.
There is clear separation of powers between the Chairman, who is an independent Director and the CEO, and this further enhances the independent of the
Board. Should any Director has any interest in any matter under deliberation, he is required to disclose his interest and abstain from participating discussions
on the matter.

Board Meetings And Supply of Information to the Board
The Board will meet at least four (4) times a year with additional meetings being held as and when required. For the financial year ended 31 December 2014,
five (5) Board meetings were held.
The agendas for the Board meetings were circulated well in advance to the Directors. The Directors are also supplied with the detailed reports and relevant
supporting documents pertaining to the matters to be discussed such as financial performance, investments and strategic direction prior to the meetings for
their perusal and consideration to assist them in making well-informed decisions. All deliberations, issues discussed and decisions made at the Board meetings
were properly recorded to provide a record and insight into those decisions. Senior management were invited to the Board meetings to enlighten the Board on
matters tabled to the Board and if required, to advise and provide clarification on matters of concern raised by the Board.
The Board is ably supported by the various Board committees as recommended by the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance. The committees set-up are
the Audit and Risk Management Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. All Board committees discharged their duties within their
terms of reference and make recommendation to the Board if matters are beyond their authority limit.
The Board members are given unrestricted access to all information pertaining to the Company; whether as a full Board or individually to assist them in carrying
out their duties. Should it be deemed necessary, the Directors are allowed to engage independent professionals at the Company’s expense on specialized issues
to enable the Board to discharge theirs duties with adequate knowledge on matters being deliberated.
The attendance of the Directors at Board meetings during the financial year are as shown below:
No.

Name Of Members

Designation

Attendance

Percentage Of Attendance

1

Azahar bin Rasul

Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

100%

2

Mohammad Sobri bin Saad

Executive Director/CEO

4/5

80%

3

Basir bin Bachik

Executive Director

5/5

100%

4

Choo Seng Choon

Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

100%

5

Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

100%

Directors’ Training
The Board is mindful of the importance for its members to undergo continuous training to be apprised on changes to regulatory requirements and the impact
such regulatory requirements have on the Group. All Directors have attended the Mandatory Accreditation Programme (“MAP”) as required by Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad. The Directors will continue to undergo other relevant training programmes to keep themselves abreast with the relevant changes in laws,
regulations and business development and the Board would also continually assess the training needs of the Directors as part of their obligation to update and
enhance their skills and knowledge in order to effectively carry out their duties and responsibilities.
During the 2014, the Directors had attended the following training programmes :Directors

Title

Azahar bin Rasul

GST Seminar held in October 2014

Mohammad Sobri bin Saad

GST Seminar held in October 2014

Basir bin Bachik

GST Seminar held in October 2014

Choo Seng Choon

GST Seminar held in October 2014

Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

ISO 15408 : Common Criteria for Information Technology Security Evaluation held in October 2014

www.eah.com.my
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (cont’d)
Appointment and Re-election
One third (1/3) of the Board shall retire from office and are eligible for re-election at each Annual General Meeting and all directors shall retire from office once
in every three (3) years but shall be eligible for re-election.
Directors over seventy (70) years of age are subject to re-appointment by shareholders on an annual basis in accordance with Section 129(6) of the Companies
Act, 1965.
Directors appointed by the Board during the financial year shall be subject to retirement and re-election by shareholders in the next Annual General Meeting
held following their appointments.
Board Committees
(a)

Audit and Risk Management Committee
The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee are set out on page 14 to 16 of the annual report.

(b)

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises exclusively of independent Non-Executive Directors as follows :Choo Seng Choon

Chairman

Azahar bin Rasul

Member

Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

Member

The Nomination Committee considers and recommends to the Board suitable candidates whom the Committee feel would be of good value and a
complementing addition to the Board. The appointment of the Directors remains the responsibility of the Board after taking into consideration the
recommendations of the Nomination Committee. The assessment of the effectiveness of the Board collectively and individually is an on-going continuous
process undertaken by the Nomination Committee. Whenever deemed necessary, the Committee would forward the relevant recommendations for the
Board consideration. In carrying out its duties and responsibilities, the Nomination Committee have full, free and unrestricted access to any information,
record, properties and personnel of the Group. The Committee may seek the external professional services to source for the right candidate for directorship
or seek independent professional advice whenever necessary.
Nomination Committee attendance :-

(c)

No.

Name Of Members

1

Choo Seng Choon

Attendance

Percentage

1/1

100%

2

Azahar bin Rasul

1/1

100%

3

Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

1/1

100%

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises exclusively of Independent Non-Executive Directors as follows :Choo Seng Choon
Azahar bin Rasul
Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

Chairman
Member
Member

The Remuneration Committee reviews, assesses and recommends to the Board the remuneration packages of the executive directors in all forms. None
of the executive directors participated in any way in determining their individual remuneration. The Board as a whole determines the remuneration of the
non-executive Chairman and non-executive directors with individual directors abstaining from decisions in respect of their individual remuneration.
In carrying out its duties and responsibilities, the Remuneration Committee have full, free and unrestricted access to any information, record, properties
and personnel of the Company. The Remuneration Committee may obtain the advice of external consultants on the appropriateness of remuneration
package and other employment conditions if required.
The remuneration package is designed to support the Company’s strategy and to provide an appropriate incentive to maximise individual and corporate
performance, whilst ensuring that overall rewards are market competitive. The Executive Directors’ package consists of basic salary, contribution to the
national pension fund and benefits-in-kind such as medical care, car allowance and fuel whilst the Non-executive Directors’ package primarily consists
of fees only.
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EA Holdings Berhad (878041-A)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (cont’d)
The remuneration packages for the Directors for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows :Executive Directors
(RM’000)
Salaries and other emoluments
Fees

Non-Executive Directors
(RM’000)

372

-

-

83

The number of Directors whose remuneration falls into each band of RM50,000 are set as follows :Number of Directors
Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

1 – 50,000

-

3

50,001 – 100,000

-

-

100,001 – 150,000

-

-

150,001 – 200,000

2

-

Attendance

Percentage

Nomination Committee attendance :No.

Name Of Members

1

Choo Seng Choon

1/1

100%

2

Azahar bin Rasul

1/1

100%

3

Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

1/1

100%

Shareholders
Investors Relations and Shareholders Communication
The Board recognizes the importance of keeping all shareholders informed of the Group’s business and corporate developments. Such information is
disseminated through the Group’s quarterly results, annual reports and through various disclosures via Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s website.
The forthcoming Annual General Meeting will be a great avenue of meeting between the Board of Directors and shareholders.
Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting (AGM) is an important forum for communication and dialogue between the Group and the shareholders to raise questions or to
inquire more information on the Group’s development and financial performance. The CEO and Board members are present to address all shareholders’ queries
on issues relevant to the Group. However, if the queries raised are not immediately answerable during the AGM, the CEO will send a written letter containing the
explanation after the AGM is over. Notice of the AGM is released to shareholders at least 21 days before the date of the meeting.
The shareholders have direct access to the Board and are encouraged to participate in the open question and answer session.

Accountability And Audit
Financial Reporting
The Board considers that the Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements
and estimates. A balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects is released through annual financial statements and quarterly
financial results.
Quarterly financial results and annual financial statements are reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management Committee and approved by the Board of Directors
before being released to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
Internal Controls
The Board of Directors recognises the importance of an effective system of internal controls covering the financial, operations and compliance controls as
well as risk management to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and stakeholders of the Group. The Board reviews the effectiveness of the internal
control system through the Audit and Risk Management Committee with the assistance of the outsourced independent Internal Auditors, which carried out risk
assessment and auditing of different areas of the business covering financial, operational and compliance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (cont’d)
Relationship With Auditors
The Audit and Risk Management Committee’s terms of reference formalises the relationship with the External Auditors to report to the members of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee on their findings. In doing so, the Group forges a transparent and professional relationship with the Company’s External
Auditors. The Audit and Risk Management Committee has met the External Auditors twice to review and discuss the audit plan, scope and nature of the audit,
audit findings and financial statements for financial year ended 31 December 2014. These meetings were conducted without the presence of the Executive
Directors and the Company’s management staff.
Corporate Social Responsibility
EA Holdings Berhad recognises and adopts corporate social responsibility (CSR) commitments in our business operations they have direct and indirect impact
on the communities. Being a public listed company, EA Holdings upholds our responsibility to oblige to the statutory compliance of CSR and extend it further by
implementing various measures of which are consistent with our stakeholder’s best interest.
We have adopted a CSR policy which could be applied into our operational activities and our employees day-to-day work activities.
(a)

The Community
The Group believes in the principles of respecting human rights, equality and fairness through non-discrimination on the basis of gender, race, or religion
which are not relevant to employment. All employees are treated equally in the company.

(b)

The Marketplace
The Group is committed to maintain high standards of Corporate Governance and integrity within the company to promote confidence in management
and governance standards besides meeting shareholder expectations and to benefit the stake of the shareholders.

(c)

The Workplace
The Group believes in protecting the health and safety of our employees and provides employees a quality work environment which complies with the
health and safety standards as a good working environment would help to increase the employees’ efficiency and productivity besides improving the
quality of life of our employees. We also provide training to employees from time to time to enhance their skills and abilities which would offer excellent
opportunities for personal and career development. In addition, we also organize activities, gatherings and outings to foster and cultivate closer ties within
the Group. It also helps to produce dynamic workforce with a strong sense belonging.

(d)

The Environment
The Group understands the importance, impact and implications of our businesses to the environment and we implement environmental practices in our
operations to conserve and minimize the impact to the environment.
(i)

Paperless environment
Staffs and clients are encouraged to fully maximize the benefits of ICT (eg email, instant messaging, etc.) for communication and only print hard
copy when necessary. Moreover, in line with our aim to lower carbon footprints, the company will make its annual report available in softcopy on
Bursa and the company’s websites.

(ii)

Recycling
Staffs are encouraged to print on both sides of the papers to minimize paper usage while unwanted papers and recyclable items are collected and
sent to be recycled. This initiative is in place to support the government’s Go Green effort.

(iii)

Energy saving
Employees are advised to switch off the lights and air conditioners when they are not in use to help to conserve energy.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the financial statements of the Group are properly drawn up in accordance with applicable financial policies and
standards in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the Company’s state of affairs as at the financial year and of the results and cash flows of the
Company for that period.
The Board is also responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps proper accounting records and that such records are disclosed with reasonable accuracy to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act, 1965. The Board, with the assistance of the Internal Auditors, takes the responsibilities of
safeguarding assets of the Company to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities seriously.
Compliance Statement
The Board believes that the Company has in 2014 followed the Principles and Recommendations of the Code in all material aspects.
This statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 28 May 2015.

14

www.eah.com.my

EA Holdings Berhad (878041-A)

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT
Audit and Risk Management Committee Members
Chairman

Choo Seng Choon (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Members

Azahar bin Rasul (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Secretary

Laang Jhe How (Company Secretary)

Terms Of Reference of Audit And Risk Management Committee
1.

2.

Composition
(a)

The Audit and Risk Management Committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst themselves comprising not less than three (3) members
where the majority of them shall be composed of independent non-executive directors and the CEO shall not be a member of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee.

(b)

The Committee shall include at least one (1) person who is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants or possessing such financial related
qualification or experience as may be required by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

(c)

The term of office of the Audit and Risk Management Committee is two (2) years and may be re-nominated and appointed by the Board.

(d)

The members of the Audit and Risk Committee shall elect a Chairman from amongst themselves who shall be an independent director.

(e)

All members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee, including the Chairman, will hold office only so long as they serve as Directors of the
Company. Should any member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee cease to be a Director of the Company, his membership in the Audit
and Risk Management Committee would cease forthwith.

(f)

No Alternate Director of the Board shall be appointed as a member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

(g)

If the number of members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee for any reason be reduced to below three (3), the Board of Directors shall
within three (3) months of the event, appoint such number of new members as may be required to make up the minimum number of three (3)
members.

(h)

The Board must review the term of office and performance of the Committee and each of its members at least once every three (3) years to
determine whether such Committee and members have carried out their duties in accordance with their terms of reference.

Duties and Responsibilities
The duties and responsibilities of the Committee shall include the followings :Matters relating to External Audit
(a)

To review the nomination of external auditors and their audit fees;

(b)

To review the nature, scope and quality of external audit plan/arrangements;

(c)

To review quarterly and annual financial statements of the Company, before submission to the Board, focusing in particular on the going concern
assumption, compliance with accounting standards and regulatory requirements, any changes in accounting policies and practices, significant
issues arising from the audit and major judgmental issues;

(d)

To review the external auditors’ audit report;

(e)

To review with the external auditors, their evaluation of the system of internal accounting controls;

(f)

To review the Company’s policies and procedures with Management and external auditors to ensure the adequacy of internal accounting and
financial reporting controls;

(g)

To review any letter of resignation from the external auditors;

(h)

To consider and review whether there is reason (supported by grounds) to believe that the Company’s external auditors are not suitable for reappointment; and

(i)

To review the assistance given by the Company’s officers to the external auditors.

www.eah.com.my
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)
Matters relating to Internal Audit function
(a)

To review the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

(b)

To review the internal audit programme and results of the internal audit process;

(c)

To review the follow up actions by the Management on the weakness of internal accounting procedures and controls;

(d)

To review on all areas of significant financial risk and the arrangements in place to contain those risks to acceptable levels; and

(e)

To review the assistance and co-operation given by the Group and its officers to the internal auditors.

Risk Management and Internal Control

3.

(a)

To review the adequacy of risk management framework and to provide independent assurance to the Board of Directors on the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management processes;

(b)

To evaluate the quality and effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls and management information systems, including compliance with
applicable laws, rules and guidelines; and

(c)

To recommend to the Board of Directors the Statement of Internal Control and any changes to the said statement.

Authority
The Committee shall in accordance with a procedure to be determined by the Board and at the expense of the Company :

4.

(a)

have explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference;

(b)

have the resources which the Committee needs to perform the duties;

(c)

have full access to any information which the Committee requires in the course of performing its duties;

(d)

have unrestricted access to all employees of the Group;

(e)

have direct communication channels with the external auditors;

(f)

be able to obtain outside legal or independent professional advice in the performance of its duties at the cost of the Company; and

(g)

be able to invite outsiders with relevant experience to attend its meetings, if necessary.

Meetings and Minutes
The Committee shall hold not less than four (4) meetings a year to review the quarterly results and year end financial statements. In order to form the
quorum for each meeting, a minimum of two (2) members present shall be Independent Directors.
In addition to the Committee members, the head of internal audit shall normally attend the meetings. Representatives of the external auditors shall attend
meetings where matters relating to the audit of the statutory accounts and/or the external auditors are to be discussed.
Minutes of each meeting shall be kept and distributed to each member of the Committee and also to the other members of the Board. The Committee
Chairman shall report on each meeting to the Board.
The Secretary to the Committee shall be the Company Secretary.

5.

Internal Audit Function
The Company’s internal audit function is outsourced to an independent professional internal audit service provider, which reports directly to the Audit
and Risk Management Committee. The Internal Auditors adopt a risk-based approach when preparing its annual audit plan and strategy. The principal
role of the internal audit is to conduct independent and regular reviews of the various operations of the Company and to provide objective reports on the
state of the internal controls to the Audit and Risk Management Committee. All internal audit reports will be presented to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee for deliberation. The Audit and Risk Management Committee would then make the relevant recommendations for the management’s further
action. The total costs incurred for the outsourced internal audit function during the year was RM9,150.
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)
Summary of Activities
During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, in line with the terms of reference, the Committee carried out the following activities in the discharge of
its functions and duties:
1.

Meeting with the external auditors to review the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2014;

2.

Reviewed the audit reports of the Group prepared by the external auditors and considered the major findings by the auditors and management’s
responses thereto;

3.

Reviewed the quarterly and year-end financial results of the Group prior to submission to the Board for consideration and approval;

4.

Reviewed the disclosure of related party transactions entered into by the Group in the annual report of the Group;

5.

Reviewed the audit plan, nature and scope of the external auditors and considering their audit fee;

6.

Reviewed the audit plan, nature and scope as proposed by the internal auditors;

7.

Reviewed the audit reports presented by the internal auditors on the findings and recommendations and ensure that they are duly acted upon by the
management.

Meeting Attendance
The Committee held five (5) meetings during the year ended 31 December 2014. The details of the attendance are as follows:
Directors

No. of meetings attended

Choo Seng Choon

5/5

Azahar bin Rasul

5/5

Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

5/5
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Paragraph 15.26(b) of the ACE Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad requires the Board of Directors to include in its annual report
a statement about the state of the risk management and internal controls of the Group. The Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance 2012 under Principle 6
states that the Board should establish a sound risk management framework and internal controls systems.

Board Responsibilities
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) recognises the importance of maintaining a good system of risk management and internal controls and risk management
to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for reviewing the adequacy and integrity of
the Company’s system of risk management and internal control, identifying principal risks and establishing an appropriate control environment and framework
to manage risks and evaluating the Group’s operational effectiveness and efficiency.
The Board has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal controls of the Group. It recognises that due to inherent
limitations, such systems are designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risk of business failure. As such, these systems could only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses and the effectiveness of an internal control system may vary over time.

System of Risk Management
The Board acknowledged that all areas of the Group’s activities involve some degree of risks and recognises that effective risk management is part of good
business management practice for the successful achievement of the Group’s business objectives. Operationally, the respective directors of the subsidiary
companies and key management staff are responsible for managing the risks of their departments and periodic management meetings are held to address
significant issues faced by the Group so as to ensure significant risks are closely monitored and appropriately addressed. Significant risks are highlighted to the
Board on an exception basis. The abovementioned practices/initiatives serves as the on-going process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
that affect the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

System of Internal Control
The key measures implemented in the Group are as follows :(i)

A well defined organisation structure with distinct lines of accountability that sets out the authority delegated to the board and management
committees;

(ii)

A management reporting system to facilitate the collection, processing, monitoring and dissemination of critical information for management review and
decision;

(iii)

Performance reports such as quarterly financial review, business development and other corporate matters are regularly provided to the Directors for
discussion and deliberations at Board of Directors meeting;

(iv)

Review of quarterly and annual financial results by the Audit and Risk Management Committee;

(v)

Regular meetings by the management team to discuss and review reports and business developments and to resolve key operations and managements
issues;

(vi)

Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control, with the assistance of the internal audit function; and

(vii) The executive directors adopt a hands-on approach in running the business and operations of the Group and report to the Board on significant changes
which may affect the operations of the Group.
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont’d)
Internal Audit Function
The Group has outsourced its internal audit function to an independent professional firm to review the adequacy and integrity of the internal control systems
of the Group.
The functions of the internal audit are as follows :1.

Perform audit work in accordance with the pre-approved internal audit plan.

2.

Carry out review on the system of internal controls of the Group.

3.

Review and comment on the effectiveness and adequacy of the existing control policies and procedures.

4.

Provide recommendations, if any, for the improvement of the control policies and procedures.

5.

Review and comment on the implementation status of the recommendation by the internal audit function.

The internal audit function reports directly to the Audit and Risk Management Committee and is independent of the management. The internal audit reports are
submitted to the Audit and Risk Management Committee who would review and deliberate on the findings before making the necessary recommendations to
the Board to strengthen its system internal control and policies.

Conclusion
The Board have received assurance from the Executive Directors that the Group’s risk management and internal control system is operating adequately and
effectively, in all material aspects based on the risk management and internal control system of the Group.
The Board is committed towards operating a sound system of internal control and effective risk management practices throughout the Group and is of the view
that they are adequate to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets. There were no material losses incurred during the financial year as a
result of weaknesses in internal control that would require a separate disclosure in the annual report. The Board will, when necessary, take the necessary steps
to further enhance the Company’s system of risk management and internal control to adapt to the ever changing and challenging business environment.

Review of the Statement by the External Auditors
The External Auditors have reviewed the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control and reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe the statement is inconsistent with their understanding of the process adopted by the Board in reviewing the adequacy and integrity
of the risk management and internal controls systems.
This Statement was made in accordance with a resolution of the Board dated 28 April 2015.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION
(a)

Utilisation of Proceeds
The status of utilisation of the gross proceeds of RM42.518 million from the Rights Issue by the Company as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:Proposed
Utilisation
RM’000

Amount
Utilised
RM’000

Amount
Unutilised
RM’000

Deviation
RM’000

Future viable investments

30,000

18,000

12,000

-

Within 24 months from
completion

Repayment of borrowings

4,290

3,290

1,000

-

Within 24 months from
completion

Working capital

7,428

2,252

5,000

176

Within 24 months from
completion

800

976

-

42,518

24,518

18,000

Purposes

Rights Issue expenses
Total
(b)

Intended Timeframe for
Utilisation

Explanation

Being the additional
rights issue expenses of
RM176,000 incurred

(176) Upon completion
-

Share Buybacks
There was no Share Buybacks arrangement during the financial year.

(c)

Options, Warrants or Convertible Securities
(i) None of the Warrants A 2010/2015 has been exercised during the financial year and the total number of warrants remained unexercised is
151,063,248.
(i) None of the Warrants B 2014/2019 has been exercised during the financial year and the total number of warrants remained unexercised is
122,776,822.
(i) None of the Warrants C 2014/2019 has been exercised during the financial year and the total number of warrants remained unexercised is
212,588,250.

(d)

American Depository Receipt (ADR) or Global Depository Receipt (GDR) Programme
During the financial year, the Company did not sponsor any ADR or GDR programme.

(e)

Sanctions and Penalties
There were no material sanctions and penalties imposed on the Company, Directors or management by the relevant regulatory bodies.

(f)

Non-Audit Fees
The amount of non-audit fees incurred for services rendered to the Company by its external auditors for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
was RM2,120.

(g)

Profit Estimates, Forecast or Projection
The Company did not issue any profit estimate, forecast or projection for the financial year.

(h)

Profit Guarantee
No profit guarantee was given by the Company in respect of the financial year.

(i)

Material Contracts
During the financial year, there were no material contracts of the Company involving its Directors’ and major shareholders’ interest.

(j)

Revaluation Policy
The Company does not have a revaluation policy in respect of its properties.

(k)

Recurrent Related Party Transactions of Revenue Nature (“RRPT”)
During the financial year, the Company did not enter into any RRPT.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year
ended 31st December 2014.

Principal Activities
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding, management and consultancy services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are as disclosed
in Note 8 to the Financial Statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal activities during the financial year.

Financial Results
The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year are as follows:

Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Net profit for the financial year

Group
RM

Company
RM

5,599,571

8,470,450

(891,882)

-

4,707,689

8,470,450

4,581,429

8,470,450

126,260

-

4,707,689

8,470,450

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling interests

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not substantially affected by any
item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

Dividends
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial year. The directors also do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the current financial year.

Reserves And Provisions
There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than those as disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Issue Of Shares And Debentures
As approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 29th April 2014, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from RM100,000,000 to RM250,000,000 during the financial year by the creation of additional 1,500,000,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10
each. Also, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company was increased from RM42,517,650 to RM85,035,300 during the financial year by way of
issuance of 425,176,500 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each together with up to 212,588,250 free detachable warrants on the basis of one (1) rights share
for every (1) one existing ordinary shares of RM0.10 each held and one (1) warrant for every two (2) rights shares subscribed at an issue price of RM0.10 per
rights share.
The Company has not issued any debentures during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)
2010/2015 Warrants A
In 2010, the Company completed the listing of bonus issue of 77,500,500 free warrants on the basis of one (1) free warrant for every two (2) existing ordinary
shares of RM0.10 each in the Company. Each warrant entitles the holder of the right to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share of RM0.10 each in the Company
at an exercise price of RM0.59 per warrant. In 2012, the exercise price of the warrant was adjusted from RM0.59 to RM0.40 and additional 38,750,250
warrants were issued pursuant to the adjustment.
During the financial year, the exercise price of the warrant was further adjusted from RM0.40 to RM0.30 and additional 34,812,498 warrants were issued
arising from the adjustments pursuant to the rights issue exercise.
All the warrants issued are constituted under a Deed Poll executed by the Company.
The salient features of the warrants are as follows:
a)

Each warrant entitles the registered holder, at any time during the exercise period to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share at an exercise price of
RM0.30 each, subject to adjustments in accordance with the provisions of the Deed Poll.

b)

The warrants may be exercisable at any time within five (5) years commencing from and including the date of issuance of the warrants and ending 5pm
on the expiry date. The expiry date is a day falling immediately before the 5th anniversary of the date of issuance of the warrants and if such date is not
a market day, then on the preceding market day.

c)

The new ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the warrants upon allotment and issue, rank pari passu in all respect with the existing
ordinary shares of the Company except that the new ordinary shares shall not be entitled to any dividend, rights, allotment and/or other distributions that
may be declared, made or paid prior to the date of allotment and issuance of the rights shares.

2014/2019 Warrants B
During the financial year, the Company issued 94,483,666 free warrants on the basis of two (2) free warrants for every nine (9) existing ordinary shares of
RM0.10 each in the Company. Each warrant entitles the holder of the right to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share of RM0.10 each in the Company at an
exercise price of RM0.18 per warrant. Subsequently, the exercise price of the warrant was adjusted from RM0.18 to RM0.14 during the financial year and
additional 28,293,156 warrants were issued arising from the adjustments pursuant to the rights issue exercise.
The salient features of the warrants are as follows:
a)

Each warrant entitles the registered holder, at any time during the exercise period to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share at an exercise price of
RM0.14 each, subject to adjustments in accordance with the provisions of the Deed Poll.

b)

The warrants may be exercisable at any time within five (5) years commencing from and including the date of issuance of the warrants and ending 5pm
on the expiry date. The expiry date is a day falling immediately before the 5th anniversary of the date of issuance of the warrants and if such date is not
a market day, then on the preceding market day.

c)

The new ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the warrants upon allotment and issue, rank pari passu in all respect with the existing
ordinary shares of the Company except that the new ordinary shares shall not be entitled to any dividend, rights, allotment and/or other distributions that
may be declared, made or paid prior to the date of allotment and issuance of the rights shares.

2014/2019 Warrants C
During the financial year, the Company issued 212,588,250 free detachable warrants pursuant to the rights issue with warrants on the basis of one (1) free
warrant for every two (2) rights shares subscribed for. The warrants are constituted by a Deed Poll dated 9th May 2014.
The salient features of the warrants are as follows:
a)

The issue date of the warrants is 24th June 2014 and the expiry date is 23th June 2019. Any warrants not exercised at the expiry date will lapse and
cease to be valid for any purpose;

b)

Each warrant entitles the registered holder to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share of RM0.10 in the Company at an exercise price of RM0.12 per
ordinary share;

c)

The exercise price and the number of warrants are subject to adjustments in the event of alteration to the share capital of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Deed Poll. However, no adjustment shall be made in any event whereby the exercise price would be reduced to below the par
value of ordinary share in the Company;
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)
2014/2019 Warrants C (cont’d)
d)

The warrant holders are not entitled to participate in any distribution and/or offer of further securities in the Company (except for the issue of new
warrants pursuant to adjustment as mention in item c) above), until and unless such holders exercise the rights under the warrants to subscribe for new
ordinary shares; and

e)

The new ordinary shares to be issued upon exercise of the warrants shall, upon allotment and issue, rank pari passu with the then existing ordinary
shares, including the entitlement to dividend, rights, allotments or other distributions, except that they will not be entitled to the rights, allotments or other
distributions declared by the Company which entitlement thereof precedes the allotment date of the new ordinary shares allotted pursuant to the exercise
of the warrants.

Directors
The names of the directors in office since the date of the last report are as follows:
Mohammad Sobri Bin Saad
Basir Bin Bachik
Azahar Bin Rasul
Abdul Fattah Bin Mohamed Yatim
Choo Seng Choon

Directors’ Benefits
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive any benefit (other than the benefit included
in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors in the financial statements or the fixed salary of full-time employee
of the Company or a related corporation) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the
director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest.
Neither during nor at the end of the financial year, was the Company a party to any arrangements whose object is to enable the directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests
The shareholdings in the Company of those who were directors at the end of the financial year, as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by
the Company under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1965, are as follows:
Number of ordinary shares of RM0.10 each
Balance as at
1.1.2014

Bought

Sold

Balance as at
31.12.2014

124,478,778

86,042,621

(44,643,945)

165,877,454

410,000

-

-

410,000

15

-

-

15

Shares in the Company
Direct interest
Mohammad Sobri Bin Saad
Basir Bin Bachik
Abdul Fattah Bin Mohamed Yatim
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)
Directors’ Interests (cont’d)
Number of warrants A 2010/2015
Balance as at
1.1.2014

Acquired

Disposed

Balance as at
31.12.2014

27,960,092

8,295,107

-

36,255,199

7

2

-

9

54

16

-

70

Direct interest
Mohammad Sobri Bin Saad
Abdul Fattah Bin Mohamed Yatim
Indirect interest
Mohammad Sobri Bin Saad

Number of warrants B 2014/2019
Balance as at
1.1.2014

Acquired

Disposed

Balance as at
31.12.2014

Mohammad Sobri Bin Saad

-

24,392,231

(10,000,000)

14,392,231

Abdul Fattah Bin Mohamed Yatim

-

3

-

3

Basir Bin Bachik

-

118,359

-

118,359

Direct interest

Number of warrants C 2014/2019
Balance as at
1.1.2014

Acquired

Disposed

Balance as at
31.12.2014

-

43,021,311

-

43,021,311

Direct interest
Mohammad Sobri Bin Saad

None of the other directors in office at the end of the financial year held shares or had beneficial interest in the shares of the Company during and at the
beginning and end of the financial year.

Other Statutory Information
a)

b)

c)

Before the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the statements of financial position of the Group and of the Company were
made out, the directors took reasonable steps:
(i)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance for doubtful debts and satisfied
themselves that no known bad debts need to be written off and that no allowance for doubtful debts is required; and

(ii)

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise in the ordinary course of business their values as shown in the financial statements
of the Group and of the Company had been written down to an amount which they might be expected to realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances:
(i)

which would require the writing off of bad debts or the making of allowance for doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company; or

(ii)

which would render the values attributable to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading; or

(iii)

which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading
or inappropriate.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:
(i)

any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which secures the liability of any
other person; or

(ii)

any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)
Other Statutory Information (cont’d)
d)

No contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial
year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and
when they fall due.

e)

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

f)

In the opinion of the directors, there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction
or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year
in which this report is made.

Auditors
The auditors, STYL Associates, have indicated their willingness to continue in office.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors,

Mohammad Sobri Bin Saad
Director

Basir Bin Bachik
Director

Kuala Lumpur
Date: 28th April 2015
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
We, MOHAMMAD SOBRI BIN SAAD and BASIR BIN BACHIK, being two of the directors of EA Holdings Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors,
the accompanying financial statements are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at
31st December 2014 and of their financial performance and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended.
The supplementary information set out in Note 32 have been prepared in all material respects, in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No.1 Determination
of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors,

Mohammad Sobri Bin Saad
Director

Basir Bin Bachik
Director

Kuala Lumpur
Date: 28th April 2015

STATUTORY DECLARATION
I, TAY MUN KIT, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of EA Holdings Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the
accompanying financial statements are, in my opinion, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue
of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the
abovenamed TAY MUN KIT at Petaling Jaya, on
28th April 2015

Tay Mun Kit

Before me:
S.Arokiadass A.M.N
No. B 460

www.eah.com.my
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
to the Members of EA Holdings Berhad

Report On The Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of EA Holdings Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 31st December 2014 of the Group
and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows
of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on
pages 30 to 67.
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The directors are also
responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
mistatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on
auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and
of the Company as at 31st December 2014 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

Report On Other Legal And Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:

28

(a)

In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and its subsidiaries have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(b)

We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the Company’s financial statements are in form and
content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information
and explanations required by us for those purposes.

(c)

Our auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any qualification and did not include any comment made under
Subsection (3) of Section 174 of the Act.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
to the Members of EA Holdings Berhad (cont’d)
Other Reporting Responsibilities
The supplementary information set out in Note 32 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial
statements. The directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1,
Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements,
as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary
information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.
STYL Associates
Firm No. AF 1929
Chartered Accountants
Si Chay Beng
Approval No: 1200/08/16(J)
Chartered Accountant
Date: 28th April 2015
Petaling Jaya
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31st December 2014

Group

Company

Note

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

Property, plant and equipment

6

6,709,284

1,306,315

3,112,392

163,169

Intangible assets

7

45,318,577

29,771,749

-

-

Investment in subsidiaries

8

Assets
Non-Current Assets

-

-

71,381,000

53,381,000

52,027,861

31,078,064

74,493,392

53,544,169

9

475,071

193,569

-

-

Trade receivables

10

38,802,055

48,025,543

-

-

Other receivables and prepaid expenses

10

1,392,569

889,816

26,067

67,161

Total Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Inventories

Amount owing by subsidiaries
Deposits, cash and bank balances

8

-

-

25,150,943

6,823,174

11

33,851,813

9,318,120

12,429,097

1,581,967

74,521,508

58,427,048

37,606,107

8,472,302

126,549,369

89,505,112

112,099,499

62,016,471

Total Current Assets
Total Assets
Equity And Liabilities
Capital and Reserves
Share capital

12

85,035,300

42,517,650

85,035,300

42,517,650

Reserves

13

29,963,669

26,622,690

23,954,791

16,724,791

114,998,969

69,140,340

108,990,091

59,242,441

2,360,399

2,234,139

-

-

117,359,368

71,374,479

108,990,091

59,242,441

Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling interests
Total Equity
Non-Current Liabilities
Hire purchase creditors

14

914,773

999,097

89,190

138,829

Term loans

15

1,041,613

-

1,041,613

-

Deferred tax liabilities

16

402,392

48,959

-

-

2,358,778

1,048,056

1,130,803

138,829

Total Non-Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade payables

17

1,636,446

10,178,788

-

-

Other payables and accrued expenses

17

2,014,366

1,067,839

1,596,572

248,347

Bank borrowings

18

1,187,796

4,512,000

147,639

986,982

8

-

-

184,755

1,353,169

Amount owing to director

19

11,650

10,100

-

-

Hire purchase creditors

14

Amount owing to subsidiaries

287,853

264,798

49,639

46,703

Tax liabilities

1,693,112

1,049,052

-

-

Total Current Liabilities

6,831,223

17,082,577

1,978,605

2,635,201

Total Liabilities

9,190,001

18,130,633

3,109,408

2,774,030

126,549,369

89,505,112

112,099,499

62,016,471

Total Equity and Liabilities

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31st December 2014

Group

Company

Note

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

Revenue

20

40,309,048

91,654,503

9,950,590

-

Other operating income

21

223,526

98,393

189,499

18,317

281,502

(100,665)

-

-

(25,949,916)

(72,458,437)

-

-

(3,978,963)

(3,749,164)

(292,191)

(329,687)

(438,544)

(59,897)

-

-

Changes in inventories of trading merchandise
Purchases and other direct costs
Staff costs

22

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(531,520)

(625,287)

(97,087)

(96,722)

Directors’ remuneration

23

(698,473)

(911,697)

(149,700)

(63,000)

Other operating expenses

21

(3,194,800)

(3,188,700)

(1,055,005)

(726,877)

6,021,860

10,659,049

8,546,106

(1,197,969)

(422,289)

(674,139)

(75,656)

(215,288)

5,599,571

9,984,910

8,470,450

(1,413,257)

(891,882)

(729,645)

-

-

4,707,689

9,255,265

8,470,450

(1,413,257)

4,581,429

8,984,795

8,470,450

(1,413,257)

126,260

270,470

-

-

4,707,689

9,255,265

8,470,450

(1,413,257)

4,581,429

8,984,795

8,470,450

(1,413,257)

126,260

270,470

-

-

4,707,689

9,255,265

8,470,450

(1,413,257)

Profit/(Loss) from operations
Finance costs

24

Profit/(Loss) before tax
Income tax expense

25

Profit/(Loss) for the year representing total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year
Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling interests

Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling interests

Earnings per share attributable to Owners of the Company:
Basic (sen)

26

0.64

1.61

Diluted (sen)

26

0.61

N/A

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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42,517,650

85,035,300

Transaction with owners:
Issuance of shares with free warrants pursuant to
rights issue

Balance as at 31st December 2014

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

85,035,300

-

42,517,650

-

42,517,650

Share
capital
RM

20,007,390

(9,502,695)

4,581,429

24,928,656

8,984,795

15,943,861

Balance as at 31st December 2014

15,622,522

9,502,695

-

6,119,827

-

6,119,827

42,517,650

8,071,502

(1,240,450)

-

9,311,952

-

9,311,952

Distributable
reserveRetained
earnings
RM

Transaction with owners:
Issuance of shares with free warrants pursuant to rights issue

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

Balance as at 31st December 2013

Total comprehensive loss for the financial year

Company
As at 1st January 2013

-

42,517,650

-

42,517,650

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

Balance as at 31st December 2013

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

Group
Balance as at 1st January 2013

Share
capital
RM

Non distributable reserves Share
Warrants
premium
reserve
RM
RM

8,071,502

(1,240,450)

-

9,311,952

-

9,311,952

15,622,522

9,502,695

-

6,119,827

-

6,119,827

260,767

(9,502,695)

8,470,450

1,293,012

(1,413,257)

2,706,269

108,990,091

41,277,200

8,470,450

59,242,441

(1,413,257)

60,655,698

Total
equity
RM

Distributable
reserve Retained
earnings
RM

Non distributable reserves
Share
Warrants
premium
reserve
RM
RM

41,277,200

4,707,689

71,374,479

9,255,265

62,119,214

Total
equity
RM

117,359,368

-

126,260

2,234,139

270,470

1,963,669

Non-Controlling
interests
RM

2,360,399

41,277,200

4,581,429

69,140,340

8,984,795

60,155,545

Total
RM

114,998,969

(13,737,745)

-

-

(13,737,745)

-

(13,737,745)

Other
reserve
RM

EA Holdings Berhad (878041-A)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31st December 2014
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31st December 2014

Group

Company

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

5,599,571

9,984,910

8,470,450

(1,413,257)

Amortisation of intangible assets

438,544

59,897

-

-

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

531,520

625,287

97,087

96,722

-

3,565

-

-

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Adjustments for:

Deposits written off

-

-

(9,950,590)

-

Finance costs

Dividend income

422,289

674,139

75,656

215,288

Interest income

(219,257)

(98,393)

(189,499)

(18,317)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes

(3,267)

-

-

-

6,769,400

11,249,405

(1,496,896)

(1,119,564)

(281,502)

100,665

-

-

10,712,944

(16,313,680)

-

-

497,247

593,900

41,094

(42,500)

-

-

(8,377,179)

3,088,101

(8,582,544)

9,840,485

-

-

(596,409)

106,164

(179,711)

(369,296)

-

-

(1,168,414)

(233,222)

Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in other receivables and prepaid expenses
(Increase)/Decrease in amount owing by subsidiaries
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables and accrued expenses
Decrease in amount owing to subsidiaries
Increase in amount owing to director

1,050

10,100

-

-

8,520,186

5,587,039

(11,181,106)

1,323,519

Finance costs paid

(422,289)

(674,139)

(75,656)

(215,288)

Interest received

219,257

98,393

189,499

18,317

Tax paid

(572,654)

(93,170)

-

-

7,744,500

4,918,123

(11,067,263)

1,126,548

(1,708,262)

(20,538)

(329,122)

(4,381)

11,500

-

-

-

Cash Generated From/(Used In) Operations

Net Cash From/(Used In) Operating Activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Development costs incurred
Acquisition of investment in subsidiary (Note 8)
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities

(1,481,551)

(2,167,158)

-

-

(17,550,582)

-

(18,000,000)

(1,000)

(20,728,895)

(2,187,696)

(18,329,122)

(5,381)

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31st December 2014 (cont’d)

Group
2014
RM

Company
2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Increase/(Decrease) in bank borrowings

(2,626,234)

1,443,795

-

-

Increase in deposits pledged for banking facilities granted

(694,245)

(1,243,233)

(223,107)

(1,059,713)

Repayment of hire purchase payables

(287,269)

(2,253,224)

(46,703)

(43,766)

41,277,200

-

41,277,200

-

Net Cash From/(Used In) Financing Activities

Net proceeds from issuance of shares

37,669,452

(2,052,662)

41,007,390

(1,103,479)

Net Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents

24,685,057

677,765

11,611,005

17,688

5,138,021

4,460,256

(986,982)

(1,004,670)

29,823,078

5,138,021

10,624,023

(986,982)

Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning Of Year
Cash And Cash Equivalents At End Of Year (Note 27)
Note:

During the financial year, the Group and the Company acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of RM4,651,450 and RM3,046,310 of
which RM2,943,188 and RM2,717,188 were acquired under hire purchase and term loan arrangement. Cash payments by the Group and the Company for the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounted to RM1,708,262 and RM329,122 respectively.
In 2013, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in a subsidiary for a cash consideration of RM1,000. The Group further acquired 2,250,000 ordinary shares
in the subsidiary through the capitalisation of amount owing to the Company.

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1)

General Information
The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad.
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding, management and consultancy services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are as
disclosed in Note 8 to the Financial Statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal activities during the financial
year.
The registered office of the Company is located at No: 149-A, Jalan Amminuddin Baki, Taman Tun Dr Ismail, 60000 Kuala Lumpur.
The principal place of business of the Company is located at Lot 6.13A, Level 6, One Tech Park, Jalan Tanjung, Bandar Utama, 47800 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor Darul Ehsan.
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM).
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been authorised by the Board of Directors for issuance on 28th April 2015.

2)

Basis Of Preparation Of The Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS),
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.
At the beginning of the current financial year, the Group and the Company adopted the new and revised MFRSs which are mandatory for financial period
beginning on or after 1st January 2014.
Adoption of Amendments to MFRSs and Issues Committee (“IC”) Interpretations
The accounting policies adopted by the Group and the Company are consistent with those adopted in the previous year, except as follows:
Amendments to MFRS 10
Amendments to MFRS 12
Amendments to MFRS 127
Amendments to MFRS 132
Amendments to MFRS 136
Amendments to MFRS 139
IC Interpretation 21

Consolidated Financial Statements: Investment Entities
Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities: Investment Entities
Separate Financial Statements: Investment Entities
Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
Levies

The adoption of the above standards and interpretations did not have any significant impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company.
Standards issued but not yet effective
As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards, Amendments and Annual Improvements have been issued by the
Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but are not yet effective and have not been adopted by the Group and the Company:

Amendments to MFRS 119
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle
MFRS 14
Amendments to MFRS 11
Amendments to MFRS 127
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128
Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 138
Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 141
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle
Amendments to MFRS 101
Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 128
MFRS 15
MFRS 9
www.eah.com.my

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contribution

Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation
Agriculture: Bearer Plants
Disclosure Initiative
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Financial Instruments

Effective for annual period
beginning on or after
1st July 2014
1st July 2014
1st July 2014
1st January 2016
1st January 2016
1st January 2016
1st January 2016
1st January 2016
1st January 2016
1st January 2016
1st January 2016
1st January 2016
1st January 2017
1st January 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2)

Basis Of Preparation Of The Financial Statements (cont’d)
Standards issued but not yet effective (cont’d)
The Group and the Company will adopt the above pronouncements where applicable when they become effective in the respective financial periods.
These pronouncements are not expected to have any effect to the financial statements of the Group and of the Company upon their initial application,
except as described below:
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments
In November 2014, MASB issued the complete version of MFRS 9 replacing MFRS 139. MFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model
in MFRS 139 and establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss and fair
value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”). The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are always measured at fair value through profit or loss with an irrevocable option
at inception to present changes in fair value in OCI (provided the instrument is not held for trading). A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost only
if the entity is holding it to collect contractual cash flows and the cash flows represent principal and interest.
For liabilities, the standard retains most of the MFRS 139 requirements. These include amortised cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with
bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value
change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting
mismatch.
There is now a new expected credit losses model on impairment for all financial assets that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in
MFRS 139. The expected credit losses model is forward-looking and eliminates the need for a trigger event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
The Group and the Company are currently assessing the impact of the adoption of this standards in relation to the new requirements for classification,
measurement and impairment.

3)

Financial Risk Management Objectives And Policies
The operations of the Group are subject to a variety of financial risks, including market risk (including interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The
Group has adopted a financial risk management framework with the principal objective of effectively managing these risks and minimising any potential
adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group and of the Company.
Market risk: Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.
The Group’s variable rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates. The Group’s investment in financial
assets are mainly short term in nature and mostly placed in financial deposits.
Changes in interest rates are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s profit or loss.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
An increase of 100 basis point at the reporting date would have decreased the profit before tax by the amount shown below and a decrease would have
an equal but opposite effect. This analysis assumes that all other variables, remain constant.
Group
RM
Decrease in profit before tax

36

21,934
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
3)

Financial Risk Management Objectives And Policies (cont’d)
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from its receivables from customers. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from loans
and advances to subsidiaries.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. As at the end of the reporting period, the
maximum exposure to credit risk arising from receivables is represented by the carrying amounts in the statements of financial position.
Management has taken reasonable steps to ensure that receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are measured at their realisable values. A
significant portion of these receivables are regular customers that have been transacting with the Group. The Group uses ageing analysis to monitor the
credit quality of the receivables. Any receivables having significant balances past due more than 120 days, which are deemed to have higher credit risk,
are monitored individually.
The ageing of trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period was:
Group

Neither past due nor impaired

2014
RM

2013
RM

7,999,528

24,769,030

Past due 31 to 60 days, not impaired

964,536

2,112,455

Past due 61 to 90 days, not impaired

5,591,579

373,145

Past due 91 - 120 days, not impaired

1,269,672

5,989,042

22,976,740

14,781,871

30,802,527

23,256,513

38,802,055

48,025,543

Past due more than 120 days, not impaired

i)

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy receivables with good payment records with the Group.
None of the Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the financial year.

ii)

Receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM30,802,527 (2013: RM23,256,513) that is past due at the reporting date but not impaired.
These receivables are unsecured. Management is confident that these receivables are recoverable as these accounts are still active.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
3)

Financial Risk Management Objectives And Policies (cont’d)
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
The Group practises prudent liquidity risk management to minimise the mismatch of financial assets and liabilities and to maintain sufficient funds for
contingent funding requirement of working capital.

Carrying
amount
RM

Contractual
undiscounted
cash flows
RM

On demand or
within one year
RM

Two to
five years
RM

More than
five years
RM

Trade payables

1,636,446

1,636,446

1,636,446

-

-

Other payables

1,531,136

1,531,136

1,531,136

-

-

Group
2014
Financial liabilities

Amount owing to director
Hire purchase creditors
Term loans

11,650

11,650

11,650

-

-

1,202,626

1,341,088

345,780

955,291

40,017

1,189,252

1,189,252

147,639

565,997

475,616

5,571,110

5,709,572

3,672,651

1,521,288

515,633

10,178,788

10,178,788

10,178,788

-

-

2013
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Amount owing to director

10,100

10,100

10,100

-

-

1,263,895

1,434,409

330,108

1,044,974

59,327

11,452,783

11,623,297

10,518,996

1,044,974

59,327

1,527,936

1,527,936

1,527,936

-

-

Amount owing to subsidiaries

184,755

184,755

184,755

-

-

Hire purchase creditors

138,829

149,596

56,124

93,472

-

Hire purchase creditors
Company
2014
Financial liabilities
Other payables

Term loans

1,189,252

1,189,252

147,639

565,997

475,616

3,040,772

3,051,539

1,916,454

659,469

475,616

1,353,169

1,353,169

1,353,169

-

2013
Financial liabilities
Amount owing to subsidiaries
Hire purchase creditors

38

185,532

205,720

56,124

149,596

1,538,701

1,558,889

1,409,293

149,596
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
3)

Financial Risk Management Objectives And Policies (cont’d)
Capital Risk Management Policies and Procedures
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and to maintain an optimal
capital structure so as to provide returns for shareholders.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. There were no changes made
in the objectives, policies or processes compared to the previous financial year.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

4)

Significant Accounting Policies
a)

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise indicated in the accounting policies below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:
(i)

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

(ii)

Level 2 are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

(iii)

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

b) Property, Plant and Equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an
asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial year in which they are incurred.
Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated to write off the cost of the property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful lives of the property, plant and equipment concerned. The annual depreciation rates used are as follows:
%
Freehold building

2

Office equipment

20

Furniture and fittings

20

Computers

20

Motor vehicles

20

Moulds

20

Renovation

20
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
4)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
b) Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d)
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or change in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each financial year end, and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Gain or loss arising from the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the estimated net disposal proceed and the carrying
amount of the asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
c)

Subsidiaries and Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group:
(i)

has power over the investee;

(ii)

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

(iii)

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over the investee, including:
(i)

the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(ii)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(iii)

the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies. Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
Disposal of Subsidiaries
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the relevant assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable MFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
4)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
c)

Subsidiaries and Basis of Consolidation (cont’d)
Transactions with Non-Controlling Interest
Non-Controlling interest represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not held by the Group and are presented separately
in profit or loss of the Group and within equity in the consolidated statements of financial position, separately from the parent shareholder’s equity.
Transactions with non-controlling interest are accounted for using the entity concept method, whereby, transactions with non-controlling interests
are accounted for as transactions with owners. On acquisition of non-controlling interest, the difference between the consideration and book value
of the share of the net assets acquired is recognised directly in equity. Gain or loss on disposal to non-controlling interest is recognised directly in
equity.

d) Business Combinations
Acquisition of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of asset transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:
-

deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance
with MFRS 112 Income Taxes and MFRS 119 Employee Benefits respectively;

-

liabilities or equity instruments related to the share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of
the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with MFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date; and

-

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with MFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
Non-Controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another Standard.
Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with MFRS 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss, where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interest was disposed of.
If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.
www.eah.com.my
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
4)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
e)

Investments in Subsidiaries
In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. On disposal of
such investments, the difference between disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts are recognised in profit or loss.

f)

Intangible Assets
i)

Goodwill on Consolidation
Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is allocated, from the acquisition date, to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the
cash-generating unit may be impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit, including the allocated goodwill, with the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that cash-generating unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of
the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative fair values of the operation disposed of and portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.

ii)

Research and Development Costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:
(i)

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

(ii)

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

(iii)

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(iv)

how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

(v)

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset;
and

(vi)

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The average expected life of the development projects is fifteen (15) years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
4)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
g) Financial Instruments
i)

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised in the financial statements when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement
The Group categories financial instruments as follows:
Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification at initial recognition.
a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL)
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or are designated as such
upon initial recognition. Financial assets held for trading are derivatives (including separated embedded derivatives) or financial assets
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or net losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss do not include exchange differences, interest and dividend income. Exchange differences, interest and dividend income on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised separately in profit or loss as part of other losses or other income.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as current or non-current. Financial assets that are held primarily
for trading purposes are presented as current whereas financial assets that are not held primarily for trading purposes are presented as
current or non-current based on the settlement date.

b)

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the
Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment.

c)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be
immaterial.

d)

Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS”)
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses from changes
in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, except that impairment losses, foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary instruments and interest calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss.
The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instrument are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.
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4)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
g) Financial Instruments (cont’d)
ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (cont’d)
Financial assets (cont’d)
Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other financial liabilities.
a)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss when the financial liability is either held for
trading or it is designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
a)

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

b)

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

c)

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition if:
a)

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

b)

the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

c)

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
b)

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
4)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
g) Financial Instruments (cont’d)
iii)

Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.
For equity investments classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.
For all other financial assets, including redeemable bonds classified as AFS and finance lease receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:
-

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

-

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

-

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 60 days,
as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.
With the exception of AFS equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.
h) Impairment of Non Financial Assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-current assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent of any
unutilised previously recognised revaluation surplus for the same asset.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
www.eah.com.my
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4)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
i)

Hire Purchase Arrangement
Assets held under hire purchase are treated as if they had been purchased at cost at the commencement of the hire purchase agreements. These
costs are included under property, plant and equipment and depreciation is provided accordingly. The corresponding obligations under hire purchase
are included under liabilities. The charges of instalments payable are charged to profit or loss over the period of the hire purchase agreements.

j)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

k) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.
l)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances, term deposits and other short term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into cash with insignificant risk of changes in value against which bank overdraft, if any, are deducted.

m) Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group and the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
Ordinary shares are equity instruments.
Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental transaction costs. Ordinary shares are classified as
equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared.
n) Warrants Reserve
Proceeds from the issuance of warrants, net of issue costs, are credited to warrants reserve which is non-distributable. Warrants reserve is
transferred to the share premium account upon the exercise of warrants and the warrants reserve in relation to the unexercised warrants at the
expiry of the warrants will be transferred to retained earnings.
o)

Contingencies
A contingent liability or asset is a possible obligation or asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future event(s) not wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statements of financial position of the Group in the current and previous financial year
ends.

p) Operating Segments
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating
decision maker, which in this case is the Managing Director of the Group, to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
4)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
q) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the enterprise and the amount
of the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, net of returns, allowances
and trade discounts.
Revenue from services are recognised when services are rendered. Revenue represents the invoiced value of services rendered net of discounts
and allowances. Interest income is recognised on accrual basis.
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established while interest income is recognised on accrual basis.
r)

Foreign Currency Conversion
(i)

Functional and Presentation Currency
The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company’s
functional currency.

(ii)

Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

s)

Employee Benefits
(i)

Short term benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the year in which associated services are rendered
by employees of the Group. Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are
rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences, and short term non-accumulating compensated
absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur.

(ii)

Defined contributions plans
As required by law, companies in Malaysia make contributions to the state pension scheme, Employees Provident Fund. Such contributions
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

t)

Income Taxes
(i)

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted by the financial year end.
Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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4)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
t)

Income Taxes (cont’d)
(ii)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group and
the Company expect, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group and the Company intend to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

5)

Critical Accounting Judgements And Key Sources Of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the reported results during the reported period. It also requires
directors to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the Group’s and the Company’s accounting policies. Although these estimates and
judgement are based on the director’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ.
Critical Judgements in Applying the Group’s and the Company’s Accounting Policies
In the process of applying the Group’s and the Company’s accounting policies, the directors are of the opinion that there are no instances of application
of judgement which are expected to have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year is described below:
(i)

Capitalisation of Development Expenditure
During the year, the directors reconsidered the recoverability of the Group’s internally generated intangible assets arising from its sofware
application solutions development, which is included in the statements of financial position.
The project continues to progress in a very satisfactory manner, and customer reaction has reconfirmed the directors’ previous estimates of
anticipated revenues from the project. However, increased competitor activity has caused the directors to reconsider their assumptions regarding
future market share and anticipated margins on these products. Detailed sensitivity analysis has been carried out and the directors are confident
that the carrying amount of the asset will be recovered in full, even if returns are reduced. This situation will be closely monitored, and adjustments
made in future periods if future market activity indicates that such adjustments are appropriate.

48

www.eah.com.my

EA Holdings Berhad (878041-A)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
5)

Critical Accounting Judgements And Key Sources Of Estimation Uncertainty (cont’d)
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (cont’d)
(ii)

Impairment of Investment in Subsidiaries
The Company assesses whether there is any indication that investments in subsidiaries may be impaired at each reporting date.
If indicators are present, these assets are subject to impairment review. The impairment review comprises a comparison of the carrying amount of
the investment and the investment’s estimated recoverable amount.
Judgements made by management in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies in respect of investments in subsidiaries is to select
suitable methods of valuation such as, amongst others, discounted cash flow, realisable net asset value and sector average price-earning ratio
methods.
Once a suitable method of valuation is selected, management makes certain assumptions concerning the future to estimate the recoverable amount
of the investment. These assumptions and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the investments within the next financial year. Depending on the specific individual investment,
assumptions made by management may include, amongst other, assumptions on expected future cash flows, revenue growth, discount rate used
for purposes of discounting future cash flows which incorporates the relevant risks, and expected future outcome of certain past events.
Management believes that no reasonably expected possible change in the key assumptions described above would cause the carrying amounts of
the investment to materially exceed their recoverable amount.

(iii)

Impairment on Trade Receivables
Management reviews its trade receivables for objective evidence of impairment. Adverse changes in background reputation and financial capability
of the receivables, and default or significant delay in payments are considered objective evidence that a receivable is impaired. In determining this,
management makes judgement as to whether there is observable data indicating that there has been a significant change in the payment ability
of the receivables.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, management uses estimates based on credit-worthiness of the receivables, past repayment
history for each receivable and historical loss experience for receivables with similar credit risk characteristics to determine the amount to be
impaired. The methodology and assumptions used are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between the estimated loss and actual loss
experience.
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-

-

As at 31st December 2013

-

-

-

-

As at 1st January 2013

Charge for the year

As at 31st December 2013

Net book value as at
31st December 2013

Accumulated depreciation

-

-

As at 1st January 2013

Additions

Cost

2013

3,042,803

-

-

Disposals

As at 31st December 2014

Net book value as at
31st December 2014

-

-

-

Acquisition of subsidiary

Charge for the year

77,029

566,397

42,717

523,680

643,426

7,935

635,491

77,961

599,763

967
32,399

-

566,397

677,724

-

3,042,803

27,778

3,042,803

6,520

643,426

Office
equipment
RM

As at 1st January 2014

Accumulated depreciation

As at 31st December 2014

Disposals

Additions

-

-

As at 1st January 2014

Freehold
building
RM

Acquisition of subsidiary

Cost

2014

Group

Property, Plant And Equipment

18,991

83,761

12,503

71,258

102,752

-

102,752

43,760

94,955

-

9,269

1,925

83,761

138,715

-

-

35,963

102,752

Furniture
and fittings
RM

123,283

918,874

150,816

768,058

1,042,157

12,603

1,029,554

2,598,892

1,235,550

-

105,440

211,236

918,874

3,834,442

-

1,329,368

1,462,917

1,042,157

Computers
RM

1,001,344

1,490,718

359,768

1,130,950

2,492,062

-

2,492,062

884,562

1,833,001

(17,767)

360,050

-

1,490,718

2,717,563

(26,000)

251,501

-

2,492,062

Motor vehicles
under hire
purchase
RM

6,151

58,914

10,735

48,179

65,065

-

65,065

355

64,710

-

5,796

-

58,914

65,065

-

-

-

65,065

Moulds
RM

79,517

390,816

48,748

342,068

470,333

-

470,333

60,951

409,382

-

18,566

-

390,816

470,333

-

-

-

470,333

Renovation
RM

1,306,315

3,509,480

625,287

2,884,193

4,815,795

20,538

4,795,257

6,709,284

4,237,361

(17,767)

531,520

214,128

3,509,480

10,946,645

(26,000)

4,651,450

1,505,400

4,815,795

Total
RM
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3,042,803

As at 31st December 2014

-

As at 31st December 2013

-

As at 31st December 2013

Net book value as at 31st December 2013

4,923

4,475

1,880

2,595

9,398

-

9,398

3,043

6,355

1,880

4,475

9,398

-

9,398

Office
equipment
RM

8,546

14,760

4,661

10,099

23,306

-

23,306

3,885

19,421

4,661

14,760

23,306

-

23,306

Furniture
and fittings
RM

9,596

6,091

3,064

3,027

15,687

4,381

11,306

9,674

9,520

3,429

6,091

19,194

3,507

15,687

Computers
RM

124,191

267,989

78,436

189,553

392,180

-

392,180

45,755

346,425

78,436

267,989

392,180

-

392,180

Motor vehicles
under hire
purcase
RM

Included in property, plant and equipment of the Group are fully depreciated assets which are still in use with a cost of RM1,501,889 (2013: RM872,145).

-

As at 1st January 2013

Charge for the year

Accumulated depreciation

-

As at 1st January 2013

Additions

Cost

2013

3,042,803

-

As at 31st December 2014

Net book value as at 31st December 2014

-

As at 1st January 2014

Charge for the year

Accumulated depreciation

3,042,803

-

Freehold
building
RM

Additions

As at 1st January 2014

Cost

2014

Company

Property, Plant And Equipment (cont’d)

15,913

27,490

8,681

18,809

43,403

-

43,403

7,232

36,171

8,681

27,490

43,403

-

43,403

Renovation
RM

163,169

320,805

96,722

224,083

483,974

4,381

479,593

3,112,392

417,892

97,087

320,805

3,530,284

3,046,310

483,974

Total
RM
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7)

Intangible Assets
Group

Goodwill on
consolidation
RM

Intellectual
property
RM

Development
costs
RM

Total
RM

As at 1st January 2014

19,674,544

-

13,978,629

33,653,173

Acquisition of subsidiary

11,076,738

3,500,000

-

14,576,738

-

-

1,481,551

1,481,551

30,751,282

3,500,000

15,460,180

49,711,462

2014
Cost

Additions
As at 31st December 2014
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1st January 2014

-

-

3,881,424

3,881,424

Acquisition of subsidiary

-

72,917

-

72,917

Amortisation for the year

-

14,583

423,961

438,544

As at 31st December 2014

-

87,500

4,305,385

4,392,885

30,751,282

3,412,500

11,154,795

45,318,577

19,674,544

-

11,811,471

31,486,015

Net carrying amount as at 31st December 2014
2013
Cost
As at 1st January 2013
Additions

-

-

2,167,158

2,167,158

19,674,544

-

13,978,629

33,653,173

As at 1st January 2013

-

-

3,821,527

3,821,527

Amortisation for the year

-

-

59,897

59,897

As at 31st December 2013

-

-

3,881,424

3,881,424

19,674,544

-

10,097,205

29,771,749

As at 31st December 2013
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount as at 31st December 2013
Key Assumptions Used in Value-In-Use Calculations

The recoverable amount of goodwill on consolidation and development costs have been determined based on value-in-use calculations using five year
financial projections. Revenue growth for the next five years were based on average percentage of growth in revenue for the past 5 years, while expenses
have been assumed to grow in line with revenue. No revenue and expenses growth were projected from sixth year to perpetuity.
A discount rate of 5% was applied in determining the recoverable amount of the respective CGU. The discount rate was based on the Group’s weighted
average cost of capital.
Sensitivity to change in assumptions
Management believes that no reasonable possible changes in any of the key assumptions that would cause the carrying values of the cash-generating
unit to materially exceed their recoverable amounts.
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8)

Investment In Subsidiaries
Company

Unquoted shares - At cost

2014
RM

2013
RM

71,381,000

53,381,000

The amount owing by/(to) subsidiaries arose mainly from advances given and payments made on behalf which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.
The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:
Equity Interest
Place of
Incorporation

2014
%

CSS MSC Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100

DDSB (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

86

Colwyn Bay Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
(“CBTSB”)

Malaysia

100

Murasaki Technology Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100

EASS Sdn. Bhd. *

Malaysia

100

100 E-Business consultancy and hardware system
integration specialists

EA MSC Sdn. Bhd. ^

Malaysia

100

100 Research, design, development, sales & distribution
of RFID-based tracking system

Name of Company

2013
%

Principal Activities

Direct Subsidiaries
100 Provision of business intelligence software
and development, IT service and management
consultancy and system integration
86 Information technology, consultancy services and
software development
100 Investment holding
- E-business consultancy and system integration

Indirect Subsidiaries

*
^

Held through Colwyn Bay Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
Held through EASS Sdn. Bhd.

During the financial year, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in Murasaki Technology Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia , for a total
consideration of RM18,000,000.
In 2013, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in CBTSB, a company incorporated in Malaysia, for a total consideration of RM1,000. The Company
further subscribed for an additional 2,250,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each in CBTSB in 2013 for a total consideration of RM2,250,000 via capitalisation
of amount owing to the Company. Subsequent to the acquisition of CBTSB, EASS Sdn. Bhd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company is placed under
CBTSB as a wholly owned subsidiary of CBTSB, with the Company as the ultimate holding company.
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8)

Investment In Subsidiaries (cont’d)
The effects of these acquisition on the financial results of the Group are as follows:
Post-acquisition results of the subsidiaries acquired:
2014
RM

2013
RM

Revenue

670,732

-

Cost of sales

(285,065)

-

Staff costs

(69,359)

-

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(32,972)

-

Director’s remuneration

(45,973)

-

Amortisation of intangible assets

(14,583)

-

Other operating expenses

(49,696)

(18,504)

Loss before tax

173,084

(18,504)

Income tax expense

(10,672)

-

Increase/(Decrease) in Group’s profit attributable to shareholders

162,412

(18,504)

2014
RM

2013
RM

1,291,272

-

Intangible assets

14,503,821

-

Trade receivables

1,489,456

-

Other receivables and refundable deposits

1,000,000

-

Cash and bank balances

449,418

1,000

Trade payables

(40,202)

-

Accrued expenses

(15,000)

-

The effect of these acquisitions on the financial position of the Group during the financial year is as follows:

Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment

Amount owing to director

(500)

-

Tax liabilities

(338,265)

-

Deferred tax liabilities

(340,000)

-

Purchase consideration
Less: Cash and cash balances acquired
Cash flow on acquisition, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired

9)

18,000,000

1,000

(449,418)

(1,000)

17,550,582

-

Inventories
Group
2014
RM

2013
RM

Raw materials

295,361

120,107

Finished goods

179,710

73,462

475,071

193,569

At cost:
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10) Trade receivables, other receivables and prepaid expenses
Trade receivables comprise amounts receivable for services rendered. The credit period granted on services rendered is 30 to 90 days. Other credit terms
are assessed and approved on a case-by-case basis.
Other receivables and prepaid expenses consist of:
Group

Company

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

Other receivables

269,012

310,572

-

-

Deferred costs

811,598

42,500

-

42,500

Prepaid expenses
Refundable deposits

11,000

5,000

-

-

300,959

531,744

26,067

24,661

1,392,569

889,816

26,067

67,161

The trade and other receivables are all denominated in Ringgit Malaysia.

11) Deposits, Cash And Bank Balances
Group

Deposits with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

Company

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

3,180,954

2,469,692

1,805,074

1,569,733

30,670,859

6,848,428

10,624,023

12,234

33,851,813

9,318,120

12,429,097

1,581,967

The deposits with licensed banks of the Group and of the Company amounting to RM2,988,578 (2013: RM2,294,333) and RM1,805,074 (2013:
RM1,581,967) respectively are pledged as security for bank guarantee facility granted to the Group. The deposits have maturity periods ranging from 30
days to 365 days (2013: 30 days to 365 days). Deposits of the Group and of the Company earn returns ranging from 2.55% to 3.30% (2013: 2.55% to
3.10%) per annum.
The deposits, cash and bank balances are all denominated in Ringgit Malaysia.

12) Share Capital
Group And Company
No. of ordinary shares of RM0.10
each

Group And Company
Amount

2014

2013

2014
RM

2013
RM

As at beginning of financial year

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

100,000,000

100,000,000

Created during the financial year

1,500,000,000

-

150,000,000

-

As at end of financial year

2,500,000,000

1,000,000,000

250,000,000

100,000,000

As at beginning of financial year

425,176,500

425,176,500

42,517,650

42,517,650

Issued during the financial year

425,176,500

-

42,517,650

-

As at end of financial year

850,353,000

425,176,500

85,035,300

42,517,650

Authorised

Issued and fully paid
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12) Share Capital (cont’d)
As approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 29th April 2014, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from RM100,000,000 to RM250,000,000 during the financial year by the creation of additional 1,500,000,000 new ordinary
shares of RM0.10 each. Also, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company was increased from RM42,517,650 to RM85,035,300 during the
financial year by way of issuance of 425,176,500 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each together with up to 212,588,250 free detachable warrants on the
basis of one (1) rights share for every (1) one existing ordinary shares of RM0.10 each held and one (1) warrant for every two (2) rights shares subscribed
at an issue price of RM0.10 per rights share.
All the new shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares of the Company.
2010/2015 Warrants A
In 2010, the Company completed the listing of bonus issue of 77,500,500 free warrants on the basis of one (1) free warrant for every two (2) existing
ordinary shares of RM0.10 each in the Company. Each warrant entitles the holder of the right to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share of RM0.10
each in the Company at an exercise price of RM0.59 per warrant. In 2012, the exercise price of the warrant was adjusted from RM0.59 to RM0.40 and
additional 38,750,250 warrants were issued pursuant to the adjustment.
During the financial year, the exercise price of the warrant was further adjusted from RM0.40 to RM0.30 and additional 34,812,498 warrants were issued
arising from the adjustments pursuant to the rights issue exercise.
All the warrants issued are constituted under a Deed Poll executed by the Company.
The salient features of the warrants are as follows:
a)

Each warrant entitles the registered holder, at any time during the exercise period to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share at an exercise price
of RM0.30 each, subject to adjustments in accordance with the provisions of the Deed Poll.

b)

The warrants may be exercisable at any time within five (5) years commencing from and including the date of issuance of the warrants and ending
5pm on the expiry date. The expiry date is a day falling immediately before the 5th anniversary of the date of issuance of the warrants and if such
date is not a market day, then on the preceding market day.

c)

The new ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the warrants upon allotment and issue, rank pari passu in all respect with the
existing ordinary shares of the Company except that the new ordinary shares shall not be entitled to any dividend, rights, allotment and/or other
distributions that may be declared, made or paid prior to the date of allotment and issuance of the rights shares.

2014/2019 Warrants B
During the financial year, the Company issued 94,483,666 free warrants on the basis of two (2) free warrants for every nine (9) existing ordinary shares
of RM0.10 each in the Company. Each warrant entitles the holder of the right to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share of RM0.10 each in the Company
at an exercise price of RM0.18 per warrant. Subsequently, the exercise price of the warrant was adjusted from RM0.18 to RM0.14 during the financial
year and additional 28,293,156 warrants were issued arising from the adjustments pursuant to the rights issue exercise.
The salient features of the warrants are as follows:
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a)

Each warrant entitles the registered holder, at any time during the exercise period to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share at an exercise price
of RM0.14 each, subject to adjustments in accordance with the provisions of the Deed Poll.

b)

The warrants may be exercisable at any time within five (5) years commencing from and including the date of issuance of the warrants and ending
5pm on the expiry date. The expiry date is a day falling immediately before the 5th anniversary of the date of issuance of the warrants and if such
date is not a market day, then on the preceding market day.

c)

The new ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the warrants upon allotment and issue, rank pari passu in all respect with the
existing ordinary shares of the Company except that the new ordinary shares shall not be entitled to any dividend, rights, allotment and/or other
distributions that may be declared, made or paid prior to the date of allotment and issuance of the rights shares.
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12) Share Capital (cont’d)
2014/2019 Warrants C
During the financial year, the Company issued 212,588,250 free detachable warrants pursuant to the rights issue with warrants on the basis of one (1)
free warrant for every two (2) rights shares subscribed for. The warrants are constituted by a Deed Poll dated 9th May 2014.
The salient features of the warrants are as follows:
a)

The issue date of the warrants is 24th June 2014 and the expiry date is 23th June 2019. Any warrants not exercised at the expiry date will lapse
and cease to be valid for any purpose;

b)

Each warrant entitles the registered holder to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share of RM0.10 in the Company at an exercise price of RM0.12
per ordinary share;

c)

The exercise price and the number of warrants are subject to adjustments in the event of alteration to the share capital of the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the Deed Poll. However, no adjustment shall be made in any event whereby the exercise price would be reduced
to below the par value of ordinary share in the Company;

d)

The warrant holders are not entitled to participate in any distribution and/or offer of further securities in the Company (except for the issue of new
warrants pursuant to adjustment as mention in item c) above), until and unless such holders exercise the rights under the warrants to subscribe for
new ordinary shares; and

e)

The new ordinary shares to be issued upon exercise of the warrants shall, upon allotment and issue, rank pari passu with the then existing ordinary
shares, including the entitlement to dividend, rights, allotments or other distributions, except that they will not be entitled to the rights, allotments
or other distributions declared by the Company which entitlement thereof precedes the allotment date of the new ordinary shares allotted pursuant
to the exercise of the warrants.

13) Reserves
Group

Company

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

Share premium

8,071,502

9,311,952

8,071,502

9,311,952

Warrants reserve

15,622,522

6,119,827

15,622,522

6,119,827

(13,737,745)

(13,737,745)

-

-

20,007,390

24,928,656

260,767

1,293,012

29,963,669

26,622,690

23,954,791

16,724,791

Non Distributable Reserves:

Other reserve:
Transaction with non-controlling interests
Distributable Reserve:
Retained earnings

Retained earnings
The Company is able to distribute dividends out of its entire retained earnings as at 31st December 2014 under the single-tier system.
Share premium reserve
The reserve comprises the premium paid on subscription of shares in the Company over and above the par value of the shares net of share issue
expenses.
Warrants reserve
Warrants reserve represents the proceeds from the issuance of warrants which is non-distributable. The warrants reserve is transferred to the share
premium account upon the exercise of warrants and the warrants reserve in relation to the unexercised warrants at the expiry of the warrants will be
transferred to retained earnings.
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14) Hire Purchase Creditors
Group

Company

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

1,341,088

1,434,409

149,596

205,720

(138,462)

(170,514)

(10,767)

(20,188)

1,202,626

1,263,895

138,829

185,532

287,853

264,798

49,639

46,703

Payable between 1 and 2 years

299,796

251,740

52,576

49,639

Payable between 2 and 5 years

575,865

689,725

36,614

89,190

Total outstanding
Less: Interest-in-suspense outstanding
Principal outstanding
Repayable as follows:
Portion payable within the next 1 year
(Included in current liabilities)
Portion payable after the next 12 months:

Payable after 5 years
Total

39,112

57,632

-

-

914,773

999,097

89,190

138,829

1,202,626

1,263,895

138,829

185,532

The effective interest rates on the hire purchase for the Group and for the Company range from 4.36% to 9.00% (2013: 4.36% to 6.89%) and at 6.01%
(2013: 6.01%) per annum respectively.

15) Term Loans
Group And Company

Secured term loans
Less: Portion payable within the next 12 months (Note 18)

2014
RM

2013
RM

1,189,252

-

(147,639)

-

1,041,613

-

2016

153,682

-

2017 and hereafter

887,931

-

Non-current portion
The non-current portion of the term loans is repayable as follows:
Financial years ending 31st December:

The above term loans bear interest at the rate of 4.85% per annum and are secured by the following:
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i)

General facility agreement; and

ii)

First legal charge over the property of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
16) Deferred Tax Liabilities
Group

Balance as at beginning of the year
Acquisition of subsidiary
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 25)
Balance as at end of the year

2014
RM

2013
RM

48,959

67,533

340,000

-

13,433

(18,574)

402,392

48,959

The recognised deferred tax liabilities are made up of temporary difference between tax capital allowances and book depreciation of property, plant and
equipment.

17) Trade Payables, Other Payables And Accrued Expenses
Trade and other payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade and ongoing costs. The average credit period granted to the Group for trade purchases
ranges from 30 to 90 days.
Other payables and accrued expenses consist of:
Group

Other payables
Accrued expenses
Deferred income

Company

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

1,531,136

-

1,527,936

-

483,230

947,839

68,636

248,347

-

120,000

-

-

2,014,366

1,067,839

1,596,572

248,347

The trade and other payables are all denominated in Ringgit Malaysia.

18) Bank Borrowings
Group

Revolving credit
Bank overdraft (Note 27)
Term loans (Note 15)

Company

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

-

2,626,234

-

-

1,040,157

1,885,766

-

986,982

147,639

-

147,639

-

1,187,796

4,512,000

147,639

986,982

As at 31st December 2014, the Group and the Company have bank credit facilities totalling RM18,500,000 (2013: RM17,500,000) and RM8,500,000
(2013: RM7,500,000) resprectively obtained from licensed banks. The facilities bear interest ranging from 1.45% to 8.85% (2013: 1.2% to 8.6%) per
annum and are secured by the following:
i)

Pledge of fixed deposits of the Company:

ii)

Corporate guarantee from the Company; and

iii)

Joint and several guarantee by the directors of the Company.
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19) Amount Owing To Director
The amount owing to director, which arose mainly from expenses paid on behalf and advances given, which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

20) Revenue
Group

Company

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

Information and communications technologies (“ICT”) services

20,692,267

61,691,980

-

-

Software solutions

12,795,783

26,062,943

-

-

6,820,998

3,899,580

-

-

-

-

9,950,590

-

40,309,048

91,654,503

9,950,590

-

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

102,500

94,000

28,000

25,000

RFID, access control system (“ACS”) and building automation
system (“BAS”)
Dividend income

21) Other Operating Expenses/(Income)
Included in other operating expenses/(income) are the following charges/(credits):
Group

Company

Auditors’ remuneration
- current year

-

(14,610)

-

-

Rental of premises

- overprovision in prior year

468,820

467,492

59,125

64,500

Deposits written off

-

3,565

-

-

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest income from fixed deposits

(3,267)

-

-

-

(219,257)

(98,393)

(189,499)

(18,317)

22) Staff Costs
Group
2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

Salaries, allowance and bonus

2,789,542

2,572,679

204,593

262,250

Defined contribution plan

1,030,037

1,077,994

64,075

63,039

159,384

98,491

23,523

4,398

3,978,963

3,749,164

292,191

329,687

Other staff related expenses
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23) Directors’ Remuneration
Group

Company

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

608,773

775,860

60,000

-

Executive directors:
Salary and other emoluments
Defined contribution plan

7,200

72,837

7,200

-

615,973

848,697

67,200

-

82,500

63,000

82,500

63,000

698,473

911,697

149,700

63,000

Non-executive directors:
Fees

The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year fell within the following bands is analysed below:
Number of Directors
2014

2013

1

-

3

3

Executive Directors:
RM200,001 - RM300,000
Non-Executive Directors:
Below RM50,000

24) Finance Costs
Group

Company

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

Interest on:
bank overdraft

230,563

280,526

63,995

202,931

bank guarantee

11,663

70,396

-

-

hire purchase

66,525

160,055

9,421

12,357

111,298

163,162

-

-

2,240

-

2,240

-

422,289

674,139

75,656

215,288

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

885,278

752,325

-

-

revolving credit
term loan

25) Income Tax Expense
Group

Company

Estimated current tax payable
- current year
- overprovision in prior year
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 16)
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(6,829)

(4,106)

-

-

878,449

748,219

-

-

13,433

(18,574)

-

-

891,882

729,645

-

-
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25) Income Tax Expense (cont’d)
A numerical reconciliation of income tax expense and the product of the accounting profit/(loss) multiplied by the applicable statutory income tax rate of
the Group and of the Company is as follows:
Group

Company

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

Accounting profit/(loss)

5,599,571

9,984,910

8,470,450

(1,413,257)

Tax at the applicable statutory income tax rate of 25%

1,399,893

2,496,228

2,117,613

(353,314)

451,537

508,937

169,261

218,427

(1,214,148)

(2,239,676)

-

-

Income not subject to tax

(40,247)

(161,573)

(2,487,648)

-

Utilisation of deferred tax assets not recognised previously

(34,000)

(26,528)

-

-

Deferred tax not recognised

Tax effects in respect of:
Expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes
Income exempted from tax

315,074

142,968

200,774

134,887

Overprovision of tax in prior year

(6,829)

-

-

-

Underprovision of deferred tax in prior year

20,602

9,289

-

-

891,882

729,645

-

-

Income tax expense

The Company’s subsidiaries namely EA MSC Sdn. Bhd. and CSS MSC Sdn. Bhd. have been awarded Multimedia Super Corridor (“MSC”) status by the
Government of Malaysia and were granted pioneer status under the Promotion of Investments (Amendment) Act, 1997, which exempt 100% of the
statutory business income from taxation for a period of 10 years commencing from 15th May 2008 and 2nd July 2009 respectively.
Malaysian income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate at 25% (2013: 25%) of the estimated taxable profit for the year. The 2015 Budget announced
on 10th October 2014 reduced the corporate income tax rate from 25% to 24% effective from year of assessment 2016.

26) Earnings Per Ordinary Share
Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the financial year as follows:
Group
2014

2013

4,581,429

8,984,795

Number or ordinary shares at beginning of year

425,176,500

425,176,500

Effect of issue of shares during the year

285,392,445

131,951,328

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

710,568,945

557,127,828

0.64

1.61

Profit attributable to owners of the Company (RM)

Basic earnings per share (sen)

The comparative basic earnings per share has been restated to take into account the effects of the rights issue during the financial year.
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26) Earnings Per Ordinary Share (cont’d)
Diluted
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary share in issue during the financial year have been
adjusted for the dilutive effects of warrants.
2014
Profit attributable to owners of the Company (RM)

4,581,429

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

710,568,945

Effect of dilution
- Warrants

35,875,540

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue and issuable

746,444,485

Diluted earnings per share (sen)

0.61

The effect on the diluted earnings per share in 2013 arising from the assumed exercise of warrant is anti-dilutive.

27) Cash And Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include deposits, cash and banks balances net of outstanding bank
overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statements of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items
in the statements of financial position as follows:
Group

Deposits with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances
Bank overdraft (Note 18)
Less: Fixed deposits pledged to licensed banks
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Company

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

3,180,954

2,469,692

1,805,074

1,569,733

30,670,859

6,848,428

10,624,023

12,234

(1,040,157)

(1,885,766)

-

(986,982)

32,811,656

7,432,354

12,429,097

594,985

(2,988,578)

(2,294,333)

(1,805,074)

(1,581,967)

29,823,078

5,138,021

10,624,023

(986,982)
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28) Segmental Information
Primary Reporting Format - Business Segments

ICT services
RM

Software
solutions
RM

RFID, ACS
and BAS
RM

Investment
holding
RM

Eliminations
RM

Consolidated
RM

20,692,267

12,795,783

6,820,998

12,950,590

(12,950,590)

40,309,048

-

1,200,000

-

-

(1,200,000)

-

20,692,267

13,995,783

6,820,998

12,950,590

(14,150,590)

40,309,048

1,420,070

3,996,261

2,015,247

11,540,872

(12,950,590)

6,021,860

2014
Revenue
External revenue
Intersegment revenue

Results
Profit from operations
Finance costs

(422,289)

Profit before tax

5,599,571

Income tax expense

(891,882)

Profit after tax

4,707,689

Other Information
Segment assets

33,255,342

50,925,376

11,522,286

120,097,049

(89,250,684)

126,549,369

Segment liabilities

20,372,600

19,252,373

3,720,638

6,080,286

(40,638,288)

8,787,609

251,501

2,699,576

135,614

3,046,310

-

6,133,001

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

48,263

361,114

25,056

97,087

-

531,520

Amortisation of intangible assets

14,583

386,318

37,643

-

-

438,544

Capital expenditure
Non-cash expenses

(Forward)
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28) Segmental Information (cont’d)
Primary Reporting Format - Business Segments

ICT services
RM

Software
solutions
RM

RFID, ACS
and BAS
RM

Investment
holding
RM

Eliminations
RM

Consolidated
RM

61,691,980

26,062,943

3,899,580

-

-

91,654,503

-

1,800,000

480,000

-

(2,280,000)

-

61,691,980

27,862,943

4,379,580

-

(2,280,000)

91,654,503

2,361,189

9,114,781

399,552

(1,216,473)

-

10,659,049

2013
Revenue
External revenue
Intersegment revenue

Results
Profit from operations
Finance costs

(674,139)

Profit before tax

9,984,910

Income tax expense

(729,645)

Profit after tax

9,255,265

Other Information
Segment assets

25,665,614

46,691,127

9,735,057

67,017,471

(59,604,157)

89,505,112

Segment liabilities

17,807,489

11,452,283

3,944,391

2,792,534

(17,915,023)

18,081,674

-

2,013,139

170,176

4,381

-

2,187,696

77,066

415,761

35,738

96,722

-

625,287

-

59,897

-

-

-

59,897

-

3,565

-

-

-

3,565

Capital expenditure
Non-cash expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of development costs
Non-cash expenses other than
depreciation and amortisation
Secondary Reporting Format - Geographical Segments

The Group has no secondary reporting format as the contribution from foreign operations is not significant compared to the Group’s operations.
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29) Significant Related Party Transactions
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Company if the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, vice versa, or where the Company and the
party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.
Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Group and of the Company either directly or indirectly. The key management personnel include all the directors of the Group and of the Company.
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year is as follows:
Group

Company

2014
RM

2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

608,773

775,860

60,000

-

Executive directors:
Salary and other emoluments
Defined contribution plan

7,200

72,837

7,200

-

615,973

848,697

67,200

-

82,500

63,000

82,500

63,000

698,473

911,697

149,700

63,000

Non-executive directors:
Fees

30) Corporate Proposals
On 18th March 2015, the Company announced that it proposed to undertake the following:
a)

Proposed Bonus Issue
Proposed bonus issue of up to 267,356,264 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each in the Company (“Bonus Issue”) to be credited as fully paid-up on
the basis of one (1) bonus share for every five (5) existing share held at an entitlement date to be determined later (“Proposed Bonus Issue”)

b)

Proposed Acquisition
Proposed acquisition by the Company of 800,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in Cekap Air Sdn. Bhd. (“Cekap”), representing 20% equity
interest in Cekap for a purchase consideration of RM47,040,000 to be fully satisfied via the issuance of new shares of the Company at the issue
price of RM0.10 per share (“Proposed Acquisition”)

c)

Proposed Diversification
Proposed diversification of the existing principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries to include mechanical and electrical engineering
business and construction project management consultancy business (“Proposed Diversification”)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
31) Fair Value Of Financial Instruments
Determination of Fair Value:
i)

Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.
The following are classes of financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of
fair value:
Note
Trade receivables

10

Other receivables

10

Amount owing by subsidiaries

8

Trade payables

17

Other payables

17

Amount owing to subsidiaries

8

Amount owing to director

19

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of fair values due to their relatively short-term nature.
ii)

Unquoted Equity Instruments
It is not practical to estimate the fair value of the Company’s investment in unquoted shares because of the lack of quoted market prices and the
variability to estimate fair value. However, the management believes that the carrying amount represents the recoverable value.

iii)

Fair Value Hierarchy
As at 31st December 2014, there were no financial instruments carried at fair value.

32) Supplementary Information
Supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the
Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA
Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad are as follow:
Group
2014
RM

Company
2013
RM

2014
RM

2013
RM

Retained earnings carried forward are analysed as follows:
Unrealised

(402,392)

(48,959)

-

-

Realised

33,534,891

36,162,143

260,767

1,293,012

33,132,499

36,113,184

260,767

1,293,012

Add: Consolidation adjustments

(13,125,109)

(11,184,528)

-

-

Total retained earnings

20,007,390

24,928,656

260,767

1,293,012
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS Shareholding Structure As At 27 April 2015
Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital
Issued and fully paid-up capital
Class of shares
Voting Rights

RM250,000,000
RM85,035,300
Ordinary Shares of RM0.10 each
One vote per share

Distribution Of Shareholdings As At 27 April 2015

Less than 100

No. of holders

%

No. of shares

%

31

0.5

1,247

0.0

100 - 1,000

100

1.7

44,426

0.0

1,001 - 10,000

900

15.2

6,727,800

0.8

10,001 - 100,000

3,704

62.5

180,517,200

21.2

100,001 and below 5%

1,191

20.1

517,184,873

60.8

1

0.0

145,877,454

17.2

5,927

100.0

850,353,000

100.0

5% and above
Total
Substantial Shareholder As At 27 April 2015
Name
Mohammad Sobri bin Saad

Direct Interest

Deemed Interest

No. of shares

%

No. of shares

%

145,877,454

17.2

-

-

Directors’ Shareholding As At 27 April 2015
Name
Mohammad Sobri bin Saad
Basir bin Bachik
Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

68

Direct Interest

Deemed Interest

No. of shares

%

No. of shares

%

145,877,454

17.2

-

-

410,000

0.0

-

-

15

0.0

-

-

Choo Seng Choon

-

-

-

-

Azahar bin Rasul

-

-

-

-
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS Shareholding Structure As At 27 April 2015 (cont’d)
List Of 30 Largest Shareholders As At 27 April 2015
No.

Name

No. Of Shares

%

1

RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Mohammad Sobri Bin Saad

145,877,454

17.2%

2

Ha Mun Keet

15,600,000

1.8%

3

Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Ng Chin Hong (BTINGGI-CL)

13,968,000

1.6%

4

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Tan Chin Seoh

9,000,000

1.1%

5

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged SeCurities Account For Lai Weng Chee @ Lai Kok Chye

6,804,200

0.8%

6

Yap Young Siong

5,865,000

0.7%

7

Sim Mui Khee

5,816,300

0.7%

8

Tan Soon Moi

5,500,000

0.6%

9

Tan Sook Heng

5,000,075

0.6%

10

Lai Weng Chee @ Lai Kok Chye

4,764,700

0.6%

11

CIMB Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB Commerce Trustee Berhad For Ta Dana Optimix

4,000,000

0.5%

12

Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Francis Kong @ Kong Fen Shin (E-KKU/LBN)

4,000,000

0.5%

13

Yap Ai Wei

3,519,000

0.4%

14

Era Bina Sdn Bhd

3,500,000

0.4%

15

Jagga Rao A/L Malla Naidu

3,375,100

0.4%

16

Chia Kok Chin

3,200,000

0.4%

17

Lim Kian Min

3,115,750

0.4%

18

Chan Kin Hua

2,872,700

0.3%

19

Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account - Ambank (M) Berhad For Koh Ek Chong (SMART)

2,650,000

0.3%

20

Affin Hwang Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Lye Ha Noou @ Lai Chow Mooi (M09)

2,500,000

0.3%

21

Cheong Kai Kee

2,500,000

0.3%

22

Tan Tiam Yee

2,500,000

0.3%

23

Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB Bank For Chia Ai Seng (M28033)

2,492,800

0.3%

24

Cheong Kai Kee

2,300,000

0.3%

25

Chan Han Geok

2,100,000

0.2%

26

Poh Chong Joo

2,100,000

0.2%

27

Tan Sow Peng

2,100,000

0.2%

28

Resourceful Means Sdn Bhd

2,077,700

0.2%

29

Affin Hwang Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Tan Soon Moi (Tan8316c)

2,013,636

0.2%

2,000,000

0.2%

30
B-Ok Sdn Bhd
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ANALYSIS OF WARRANTHOLDINGS FOR WARRANTS A As At 27 April 2015
Type of Securities
Voting Rights

Warrants 2010/2015 (“Warrants A”)
One vote per warrant in respect of a meeting of warrant holders

Distribution Of Warrantholdings As At 27 April 2015
Name
Less than 100
100 - 1,000

No. of holders

%

No. of warrants

%

236

23.1

15,905

0.0

83

8.1

66,047

0.0

1,001 - 10,000

115

11.3

697,963

0.5

10,001 - 100,000

327

32.1

14,639,010

9.7

100,001 and below 5%

258

25.3

99,389,124

65.8

1

0.1

36,255,199

24.0

1,020

100.0

151,063,248

100.0

No. of warrants

%

No. of warrants

%

5% and above
Total
Directors’ Warrantholdings As At 27 April 2015
Name
Mohammad Sobri bin Saad

Direct Interest

Deemed Interest

36,255,199

0.2

70

0.0

Basir bin Bachik

-

-

-

-

Choo Seng Choon

-

-

-

-

Azahar bin Rasul

-

-

-

-

Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

9

0.0

-

-

Mohammad Sobri is deemed interested under Section 132(12)(c ) of the Companies Act, 1965, by virtue of his spouse, Norazian binti Abdul Kudus’ warrantholding
in EA Holdings Berhad
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ANALYSIS OF WARRANTHOLDINGS FOR WARRANTS A As At 27 April 2015 (cont’d)
List Of 30 Largest Warrant A Holders As At 27 April 2015
No. Name

No. Of Warrants

%

36,255,199

24.0%

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Samhan Bin Haron

5,500,000

3.6%

Phua Pok In

3,299,239

2.2%

1

Mohammad Sobri Bin Saad

2
3
4

Lau Wan Ling

2,700,000

1.8%

5

Sim Mui Khee

2,598,930

1.7%

6

Lee Kok Wah

2,000,000

1.3%

7

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Sia Teng Tho

1,694,021

1.1%

8

Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Chua Sock Koon (Starhill-CL)

1,665,439

1.1%

9

Kam Choon Keat

1,559,358

1.0%

10

Kan Kit Seong

1,300,045

0.9%

11

Ng Chee Sim

1,299,465

0.9%

12

Ng Thaim Peng

1,299,465

0.9%

13

Tee Soon Tack

1,208,502

0.8%

14

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Wang Kin Seong

1,096,720

0.7%

15

Tan Tian Fu

1,091,300

0.7%

16

Samhan Bin Haron

1,078,500

0.7%

17

Nor Nenti Binti Ali

1,000,000

0.7%

18

Lee Fook On

989,839

0.7%

19

Teo Ai Lan

985,400

0.7%

20

Lai Quo Jenn

980,601

0.6%

21

Choong Swee Pon

949,732

0.6%

22

Chong Nyat Yin

944,939

0.6%

23

Samsulbahari Bin Mohd Noor

920,166

0.6%

24

Lam Sze Aun

867,805

0.6%

25

Thanalachumy A/P Kanapathy

867,533

0.6%

26

Rozila Binti Mat Don

856,500

0.6%

27

Tan Hang Yan

839,893

0.6%

28

Maybank Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Rustom Framroze Chothia

822,431

0.5%

29

SJ SEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Chua Geok Lee (SMT)

792,673

0.5%

30

Nor Azman Bin Mohamad

779,600

0.5%

www.eah.com.my

71

EA Holdings Berhad (878041-A)

ANALYSIS OF WARRANTHOLDINGS FOR WARRANTS B As At 27 April 2015
Type of Securities
Voting Rights

Warrants 2014/2019 (“Warrants B”)
One vote per warrant in respect of a meeting of warrant holders

Distribution Of Warrantholdings As At 27 April 2015
Name
Less than 100

No. of holders

%

No. of warrants

%

801

31.0

40,062

0.0

100 - 1,000

218

8.4

94,780

0.1

1,001 - 10,000

742

28.7

3,577,568

2.9

10,001 - 100,000

617

23.9

22,247,807

18.1

100,001 and below 5%

205

7.9

82,424,374

67.1

1

0.0

14,392,231

11.7

2,584

100.0

122,776,822

100.0

No. of warrants

%

No. of warrants

%

14,392,231

11.7

-

-

118,395

0.1

-

-

-

-

-

-

5% and above
Total
Directors’ Warrantholdings As At 27 April 2015
Name
Mohammad Sobri bin Saad
Basir bin Bachik
Choo Seng Choon
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Direct Interest

Deemed Interest

Azahar bin Rasul

-

-

-

-

Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

3

0.0

-

-
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ANALYSIS OF WARRANTHOLDINGS FOR WARRANTS B As At 27 April 2015 (cont’d)
List Of 30 Largest Warrant B Holders As At 27 April 2015
No.

Name

No. Of Warrants

%

1

RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Mohammad Sobri Bin Saad

14,392,231

11.7%

2

Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Loh Yeat Chung (Penang-CL)

4,270,300

3.5%

3

Wong Kar Chuan

2,800,000

2.3%

4

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Law Hoe Thiam

2,587,591

2.1%

5

Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Tee Kim Hew (E-KLG/BTG)

2,331,200

1.9%

6

Tan Tiam Yee

1,800,000

1.5%

7

Kaw Keng Wai

1,682,300

1.4%

8

Yew Boon Bee

1,601,200

1.3%

9

Quek Kiah Song

1,490,487

1.2%

10

Tan Han Lim

1,455,800

1.2%

11

RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

1,426,900

1.2%

Pledged Securities Account For Lau Yim Pheng (1011152)
12

Ong Kong Peng

1,130,000

0.9%

13

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Ting Sing Ong

1,109,625

0.9%

14

Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Tiong Ing Tin (ET)

1,100,000

0.9%

15

Ong Teck Wan

1,099,739

0.9%

16

Victor Khor Chune Locke

1,079,986

0.9%

17

Chuah Chin Chye

1,006,400

0.8%

18

Tan Soon Moi

978,802

0.8%

19

Ahmad Salahuddin Bin Ab Rahim

900,000

0.7%

20

Lee Ah Yew

874,300

0.7%

21

Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Yew Woon Fatt

869,857

0.7%

22

Sim Mui Khee

808,555

0.7%

23

Ling Koh Die @ Kuok Tai

800,000

0.7%

24

Shee Kye Chew

760,988

0.6%

25

Lau Kok Mun

749,700

0.6%

26

Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) SdN Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Wong Pok Seng (472710)

740,086

0.6%

27

Lee Aik Chye

716,244

0.6%

28

Danny Ng Chui Huat

700,000

0.6%

29

Gan Chwen Teck

649,732

0.5%

30

Ng Sau Kiat

645,200

0.5%
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ANALYSIS OF WARRANTHOLDINGS FOR WARRANTS C As At 27 April 2015
Type of Securities
Voting Rights

Warrants 2014/2019 (“Warrants C”)
One vote per warrant in respect of a meeting of warrant holders

Distribution Of Warrantholdings As At 27 April 2015
Name
Less than 100
100 - 1,000

No. of holders

%

No. of warrants

%

113

6.6

5,497

0.0

53

3.1

31,562

0.0

1,001 - 10,000

430

25.1

2,709,575

1.3

10,001 - 100,000

818

47.7

36,715,525

17.3

100,001 and below 5%

299

17.4

118,254,780

55.6

2

0.1

54,871,311

25.8

1,715

100.0

212,588,250

100.0

No. of warrants

%

No. of warrants

%

43,021,311

20.2

-

-

Basir bin Bachik

-

-

-

-

Choo Seng Choon

-

-

-

-

Azahar bin Rasul

-

-

-

-

Abdul Fattah bin Mohamed Yatim

-

-

-

-

5% and above
Total
Directors’ Warrantholdings As At 27 April 2015
Name
Mohammad Sobri bin Saad
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Direct Interest

Deemed Interest
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ANALYSIS OF WARRANTHOLDINGS FOR WARRANTS C As At 27 April 2015 (cont’d)
List Of 30 Largest Warrant C Holders As At 27 April 2015
No.

Name

No. Of Warrants

%

1

RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Mohammad Sobri Bin Saad

43,021,311

20.2%

2

RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Lau Yim Pheng (1011152)

11,850,000

5.6%

3

Poh Pai Soon

3,515,050

1.7%

4

UOB Kay Hian Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Ser Yu Beng

3,250,000

1.5%

5

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan)
Pledged Securities Account For Lai Weng Chee @ Lai Kok Chye

2,946,900

1.4%

6

Lau Seng Khiang

2,500,000

1.2%

7

Era Bina Sdn Bhd

2,148,100

1.0%

8

Jee Thai Hui

1,800,000

0.8%

9

Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Ang Piang Kok (001)

1,708,100

0.8%

10

Sim Mui Khee

1,508,150

0.7%

11

Er Zhi Lee

1,500,000

0.7%

12

HLIB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Hong Leong Bank Bhd For Ng Kar Teik

1,500,000

0.7%

13

Vidhiya A/P Ravindran

1,349,700

0.6%

14

Lai Weng Chee @ Lai Kok Chye

1,336,600

0.6%

15

Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Tiong Ing Tin (ET)

1,300,000

0.6%

16

Poo Kok Keng

1,260,000

0.6%

17

Beh Sock Im

1,250,000

0.6%

18

Hew Foot Chueng

1,230,000

0.6%

19

Danny Ng Chui Huat

1,200,000

0.6%

20

Khor Hwe Liang

1,200,000

0.6%

21

Tan Soon Moi

1,055,220

0.5%

22

Bu Seng Beng

1,000,000

0.5%

23

Er Soon Puay

1,000,000

0.5%

24

Kwong Toeh Wah

1,000,000

0.5%

25

Loy Boon Hor

1,000,000

0.5%

26

Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Francis Kong @ Kong Fen Shin (E-KKU/LBN)

1,000,000

0.5%

27

Tan Chang Bar

1,000,000

0.5%

28

Yap Hoe Lim

1,000,000

0.5%

29

Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Tan Swee Cheng (E-PPG)

960,000

0.5%

30

Yap Ai Wei

879,750

0.4%
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Redang Room, Bukit Jalil Golf & Country Resort, Jalan 3/155B,
Bukit Jalil, 57000 Kuala Lumpur on Thursday, 25 June 2015 at 10.30 a.m. to transact the following business :
Agenda
AS ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 and the Reports of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

Resolution 1

2.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees amounting to RM82,500 for the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

Resolution 2

3.

To re-elect the Directors who retire in accordance with Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association as follows :(a)
(b)

4.

Basir bin Bachik
Azahar bin Rasul

To re-appoint Messrs. STYL Associates as auditors of the Company and to authorize the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Resolution 3
Resolution 4
Resolution 5

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and, if deemed fit, to pass the following resolution :
Proposed authority to allot shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965.

5.

Resolution 6

“THAT pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, the Directors be and are hereby authorized to issue shares in
the Company, at any time until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and upon such terms and conditions and for
such purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares issued
does not exceed 10% of the issued capital of the Company for the time being, subject always to the approval of all relevant
regulatory bodies being obtained for such allotments and issues.”
6.

To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given.

By Order of the Board
LAANG JHE HOW (MIA 25193)
Company Secretary
Kuala Lumpur
29 May 2015
Notes:-
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1.

A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint proxy(ies) (or in the case of a corporation, a duly authorised representative) to attend, speak and
vote in his stead. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1)(b) of the Companies Act,1965 shall not apply to the Company.

2.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under its
common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

3.

A member shall be entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend, speak and vote at the same meetings, and that appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the
proportions of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

4.

Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991 (“SICDA”), it may appoint at least one (1) proxy
in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.

5.

Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee as defined under the SICDA which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one (1)
securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

6.

Where the authorised nominee or an exempt authorised nominee appoints more than one (1) proxy, the proportion of the shareholdings to be represented by each proxy must be
specified in the instrument appointing the proxies.

7.

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 149A, Jalan Aminuddin Baki, Taman Tun Dr Ismail, 60000
Kuala Lumpur, not less than 48 hours before the time stipulated for holding the meeting.

8.

Only the members whose names appear on the Record of Depositors as at 15 June 2015 shall be entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend,
speak and vote on their behalf.

9.

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and /or representative(s), the member accepts and agrees to the personal data privacy terms set out in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting dated 29 May 2015.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (cont’d)
1.

Explanatory notes on Ordinary Business :Ordinary Resolution 1
Audited Financial Statement for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
The item is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 169(1) of the Companies Act 1965 does not require a formal approval of the shareholders
for the Audited Financial Statements. Hence, the Agenda will not be put forward for voting.

2.

Explanatory notes on Special Business :Ordinary Resolution 6
Proposed authority to allot shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965.
The Company wishes to renew the mandate on the authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act 1965 at the 5th AGM of the
Company (hereinafter referred to as the “General Mandate”).
The Company had been granted a general mandate by its shareholders at the 4th AGM of the Company held on 25 June 2014 (hereinafter referred to as
the “Previous Mandate”).
The Previous Mandate granted by the shareholders had not been utilised and hence no proceed was raised therefrom.
The purpose to seek the General Mandate is to enable the Directors of the Company to issue and allot shares any time to such persons in their absolute
discretion without convening a general meeting as it would be both time and cost-consuming to organise a general meeting. This authority, unless
revoked or varied by the Company in a general meeting, will expire at the next Annual General Meeting. The proceeds raised from the General Mandate
will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities, including but not limited to further placing of shares, for purpose of funding
future investment project(s), working capital and / or acquisitions.
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STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
1.

Date, Time and Venue of the Fifth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
The Fifth AGM of the Company will be held as follows :Date : Thursday, 25 June 2015
Time : 10:30 am
Venue : Redang Room, Bukit Jalil Golf & Country Resort, Jalan 3/155B, Bukit Jalil, 57000 Kuala Lumpur

2.

Directors who are standing for re-election at the Fifth AGM
Directors standing for re-election pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association :(a) Basir bin Bachik
(b) Azahar bin Rasul
The shareholdings of the Directors standing for re-election are disclosed in the Directors’ Report under Directors’ Interest of this Annual Report and the
information on the Directors are disclosed under Directors’ Profile on Page 7 to 8 of this Annual Report.

3.

Board Meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December 2014
Five (5) Board Meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 December 2014. A record of the Directors’ attendances at the Board Meetings is
presented in the “Statement of Corporate Governance” appearing on pages 9 to 13 of this annual report.

4.

General Meeting Record of Depositors
For the purpose of determining who shall be entitled to attend this meeting, the Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd to
make available to the Company pursuant to Article 61(b) of the Articles of Association of the Company and Paragraph 7.16(2) of the Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad’s ACE Market Listing Requirements, a Record of Depositors as of 15 June 2015, and a depositor whose name appears on such Record
of Depositors shall be entitled to attend this meeting or appoint proxy to attend, speak and/or vote in his/her stead.
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CDS Account No.:
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No. of Shares Held:

FORM OF PROXY
I/We
of
being a member/members of Company hereby appoint (Proxy 1)
of
and*/or failing him* (Proxy 2)
of
and*/or failing him*, the Chairman of the Meeting, as *my/ our proxy to vote for *me/us and on *my/
our behalf at the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Redang Room, Bukit Jalil Golf & Country Club, Jalan 3/155B, Bukit Jalil, 57000 Kuala Lumpur
on Thursday, 25 June 2015 at 10.30 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.
The proportions of my/our holdings to be represented by my/our proxy(ies) are as follows:-

Proxy 1
Proxy 2

-

% In case of a vote by show of hands, Proxy 1*/ Proxy 2* shall vote on my/ our behalf.
%
100 %

* Strike out whichever is inapplicable
(Please indicate with an “X” in the space provided above on how you wish your vote to be cast. If you do not do so, the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his
discretion)
RESOLUTIONS
1.

FOR

2.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2014 and the Reports of Directors and Auditors
thereon.
To approve the payment of Directors’ fees amounting to RM82,500 for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2014.

3.

To re-elect the Director, En. Basir bin Bachik, who retires in accordance with Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

4.

To re-elect the Director, En. Azahar bin Rasul, who retires in accordance with Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

5.

To re-appoint Messrs. STYL Associates as auditors of the Company and to authorize the Directors to fix their remuneration.

AGAINST

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
6.

To approve authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965.

Please indicate with “ X “ in either box if you wish to direct the proxy how to vote. If no mark is made the proxy may vote on the resolution or abstain from voting as the
proxy thinks fit.
Signature of Shareholder
Signed this

day of

Affix Company Seal (if applicable)
, 2015

Notes:1)
A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint prox(ies) (or in the case of a corporation, a duly authorised representative) to attend,
speak and vote in his stead. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provision of Section 149(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply
to the Company.



2)

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either
under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

3)

A member shall be entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend, speak and vote at the same meetings, and that appointment shall be invalid unless he
specifies the proportions of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

4)

Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991 (“SICDA”), it may appoint at least
one (1) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.

5)

Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee as defined under the SICDA which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners
in one (1) securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus
account it holds.

6)

Where the authorised nominee or an exempt authorised nominee appoints more than one (1) proxy, the proportion of the shareholdings to be represented by each proxy
must be specified in the instrument appointing the proxies.

7)

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 149A, Jalan Aminuddin Baki, Taman Tun Dr
Ismail, 60000 Kuala Lumpur, not less than 48 hours before the time stipulated for holding the meeting.

8)

Only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 15 June 2015 shall be entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting or appoint prox(ies) to
attend, speak and to vote on their behalf.

9)

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and /or representative(s), the member accepts and agrees to the personal data privacy terms set out in the Notice of
Annual General Meeting dated 29 May 2015.
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AFFIX
STAMP

The Company Secretary
EA HOLDINGS BERHAD (878041-A)
No. 149A, Jalan Aminuddin Baki
Taman Tun Dr. Ismail
60000 Kuala Lumpur
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